
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JOSH GREEN 
Lt. Governor 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JAMES J. NAKATANI 

Executive Director 

STATE OF HAWAII 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 

Phone:  (808) 586-0186   Fax:  (808) 586-0189 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Held via Teleconference 
 

March 16, 2022 
9:00 a.m. 

 
Considering the evolving COVID-19 situation, protecting the health and welfare of the community is 
of utmost concern. As such, the meeting will be held  remotely, with Board members, Staff and Applicants 
participating via online meeting venue as permitted by the Governor’s “Emergency Proclamation Related 
to Sunshine Law In-Person Meetings” dated December 29, 2021. 
 
Interested persons can submit written testimony in advance of the meeting, which will be distributed to 
Board members prior to the meeting.   We request that testimony be submitted not later than 72 hours 
prior to the meeting to ensure time for Board members to review it.  Written testimony may be submitted 
electronically to hdoa.adc@hawaii.gov, or sent via U.S. Postal Service to: Agribusiness Development 
Corporation, 235 South Beretania St Rm 205, Honolulu HI 96813 
 
When testifying in-person, or via internet or telephone access, you will be asked to identify yourself and 
the organization you represent, if any. Each testifier will be limited to two (2) minutes of testimony per 
agenda item. 
 
The public can participate in the meeting using one of the following options: 
 

Video/audio livestream: https://zoom.us/j/94710280322 
 
Or, via telephone:  (669) 900-6833,  Web ID:  947 1028 0322 

 
INTERNET ACCESS: 
To view the meeting and provide live oral testimony, please use the link at the top of the agenda. You will be asked to enter your 
name.  The Board requests that you enter your full name, but you may use a pseudonym or other identifier if you wish to remain 
anonymous.  You will also be asked for an email address.  You may fill in this field with any entry in an email format, e.g., 
*****@***mail.com. 
 
Your microphone will be automatically muted. When the Chairperson asks for public testimony, you may click the Raise Hand button 
found on your Zoom screen to indicate that you wish to testify about that agenda item. The Chairperson will individually enable each 
testifier to unmute their microphone. When recognized by the Chairperson, please unmute your microphone before speaking and 
mute your microphone after you finish speaking. 
 
For both internet, phone, and in-person access, when testifying, you will be asked to identify yourself and the organization, if any, 
that you represent. Each testifier will be limited to two minutes of testimony per agenda item. 
 
PHONE ACCESS: 
If you cannot get internet access, you may get audio-only access by calling the Zoom Phone Number listed at the top on the 
agenda. 
 
Upon dialing the number, you will be prompted to enter the Meeting ID which is also listed at the top of the agenda.  After entering 
the Meeting ID, you will be asked to either enter your panelist number or wait to be admitted into the meeting. You will not have a 
panelist number.  Please wait until you are admitted into the meeting. 
 
When the Chairperson asks for public testimony, you may indicate you want to testify by entering “#” and then “9” on your phone’s 
keypad.  After entering “#” and then “9”, a voice prompt will let you know that the host of the meeting has been notified.  When 
recognized by the Chairperson, you may unmute yourself by pressing “#” and then “6” on your phone.  A voice prompt will let you 
know that you are unmuted. Once you are finished speaking, please enter “#” and then “6” again to mute yourself. 
 

001

mailto:hdoa.adc@hawaii.gov
https://zoom.us/j/94710280322


Meeting of the Board of Directors                                                                       
Page 2 of 4 
March 16, 2022 
Agenda 
 
 
For both internet, phone, and in-person access, when testifying, you will be asked to identify yourself and the organization, if any, 
that you represent.  Each testifier will be limited to two minutes of testimony per agenda item. 
 
Instructions to attend State of Hawaii virtual board meetings may be found online at 
https://cca.hawaii.gov/pvl/files/2020/08/State-of-Hawaii-Virtual-Board-Attendee-Instructions.pdf . 
 
LOSS OF CONNECTIVITY 
In the event of a loss of internet connectivity, the meeting will be recessed for a period not to exceed thirty (30) minutes to restore 
connectivity with all board members and the public In-Person Access noted above.  In the event audio connectivity is re-established 
within 30 minutes without video connectivity, interested participants can access the meeting via the telephone number and Meeting 
ID number first noted above.   
 
In the further event that connectivity is unable to be restored within 30 minutes, the meeting will be automatically continued to a date 
and time to be posted on the ADC website at https://hdoa.hawaii.gov/adc/ no later than close of business the next business day.  
New video/audio livestream, telephone, and web identification information will also be posted on the website no less than twenty-
four (24) hours prior to the continued meeting date.  Alternatively, if a decision is made to terminate the meeting, the termination will 
be posted on the ADC webite. 
 
 

[agenda begins on the following page] 

002

https://cca.hawaii.gov/pvl/files/2020/08/State-of-Hawaii-Virtual-Board-Attendee-Instructions.pdf
https://hdoa.hawaii.gov/adc/


Meeting of the Board of Directors                                                                       
Page 3 of 4 
March 16, 2022 
Agenda 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Roll Call 

C. Approval of Minutes  

1. Board of Directors Meeting, January 26, 2022 

D. New Business 

1. Request for Approval for Sunrise Capital, Inc. Under License Agreement No. LI-
K1001 and Lease Agreement No. S-5367 to Construct Greenhouses and Settling 
Ponds in Kekaha, Kauai, Tax Map Keys (4) 1-2-002:001 (por) and (4) 1-2-002:022 

2. Request for Approval to Renew License Agreement No. LI-PU1809 Issued to K&L 
Produce, LLC for 136.6 Acres, More or Less, for Six Months in Waialua, Oahu, Tax 
Map Key (1) 6-5-005:002 (por) 

3. Request for Approval-in-Concept to Issue a License to Kekaha Agriculture 
Association for up to 400 Acres, More or Less, for an Open Floodable Space in 
Kekaha, Kauai, Tax Map Key (4) 1-2-002:001 (por) 

4. Request for reconsideration of the January 31, 2018 Board authorization for the 
Kekaha Agriculture Association (KAA) to pursue a declaratory order to designate a 
portion of the Agribusiness Development Corporation’s (ADC) Kekaha lands as 
Important Agricultural Lands in accordance with Chapter 205, Hawaii Revised 
Statutes (HRS), and to certify ADC’s authorization as the landowner of lands set 
aside for control and management of ADC via Executive Order No. 4007, rather than 
the Department of Land and Natural Resources 

E. Old Business 
 
 None 

F. Executive Director’s Update 

G. Adjourn 

 

 
 
 

 

 

003



Meeting of the Board of Directors                                                                       
Page 4 of 4 
March 16, 2022 
Agenda 
 
 
The Board may go into Executive Session pursuant to exceptions provided under Section 92-5, Hawaii Revised Statutes 
(HRS), including to consult with the Board’s attorney on questions and issues pertaining to the Board’s powers, duties, 
privileges, immunities, and liabilities, pursuant to Section 92-5(4), HRS.” 
 
If you require special assistance or auxiliary aids or services to participate in the public hearing process, please contact 
staff at (808) 586-0186 at least three (3) business days prior to the meeting so arrangements can be made. 
                 
NOTE:  MATERIALS FOR THIS AGENDA WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW ON OUR WEBSITE ON AND AFTER 
THURSDAY, 03/10/22. 
 
The Agribusiness Development Corporation does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, sex, national origin, age, or 
disability, or any other class as protected under applicable federal or state law, in administration of its programs, or 
activities, and, the Agribusiness Development Corporation does not intimidate or retaliate against any individual or group 
because they have exercised their rights to participate in actions protected, or oppose action prohibited, by 40 C.F.R. 
Parts 5 and 7, or for the purpose of interfering with such rights. 
 
If you have any questions about this notice or any of the Agribusiness Development Corporation’s non-discrimination 
programs, policies, or procedures, you may contact: 
 

Myra Kaichi, Acting Non-Discrimination Coordinator 
Agribusiness Development Corporation 
235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 
(808) 586-0186 
hdoa.adc.titlevi@hawaii.gov  

 
If you believe that you have been discriminated against with respect to an Agribusiness Development Corporation 
program or activity, you may contact the Acting Non-Discrimination Coordinator identified above. 
 
To request language or accessibility for Agribusiness Development Corporation programs or public meetings, please 
contact the office, at (808) 586-0186 or email: hdoa.adc@hawaii.gov.  Please allow sufficient time for the Agribusiness 
Development Corporation to meet accommodation requests. 
 
To request language interpretation for this document, please contact: LEP Coordinator located at 1428 South King Street, 
Honolulu, HI 96813 (Phone: 808-973-9469 Email: hdoa.hr@hawaii.gov). Individuals may request oral interpretation 
services in order to request a written translation of this document. 

004

mailto:hdoa.adc.titlevi@hawaii.gov
mailto:hdoa.adc@hawaii.gov
mailto:hdoa.hr@hawaii.gov


AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

1 
 

Considering the evolving COVID-19 situation, protecting the health and welfare of the community is of 
utmost concern.  As such, the meeting was held remotely with Board members, Staff and Applicants, 
and the Public, participating via Zoom meeting venue.  

  

Members Present, virtually:  

 
Frederick Lau, City & County of Honolulu, Chairperson (Chair)  

Mary Alice Evans, Designated Representative, DBEDT, Ex-Officio Member (Ms. Evans) 

Glenn Hong, Member-At-Large (Mr. Hong) 

Karen Seddon, Member-At-Large (Ms. Seddon) 

Phyllis Shimabukuro-Geiser, Chairperson, Board of Agriculture, Ex-Officio Member (Ms. Shimabukuro-
Geiser) 

Lyle Tabata, Kauai County Member (Mr. Tabata) 

Warren Watanabe, Member-At-Large (Mr. Watanabe) 
Kaleo Manuel, Designated Representative, DLNR, Ex-Officio Member (Mr. Manuel) 
Lloyd Haraguchi, Member-At-Large (Mr. Haraguchi)  
James Gomes, Maui County Member (Mr. Gomes) 
 

Counsel Present, virtually:  

 
Delanie Prescott-Tate, Deputy Attorney General (Ms. Prescott-Tate) 

 
Staff Present, virtually:  

 
James Nakatani, Executive Director (Mr. Nakatani) 

Myra Kaichi, Sr. Executive Assistant (Ms. Kaichi) 

Ken Nakamoto, Project Manager (Mr. Nakamoto) 

Lyle Roe, Property Manager (Mr. Roe) 

Lance Tashima, Administrative Services Officer  

Lynette Marushige, Executive Secretary  

Mr. Stephen Dalton, IT Specialist (Mr. Dalton) 
 

Guests Present, virtually:  
 
Mike Faye, Kekaha Agriculture Association (Mr. Faye) 
Basil Gomez, DSc PhD, KBAY Environmental Services (Mr. Gomez) 
David Bissel, Kauai Island Utility Cooperative (KIUC), (Mr. Bissel) 
 

 
A.  Call to Order  

 
Chair called the virtual meeting to order at 9:06 a.m. 
  

B.  Roll Call  

 
Chair conducted a roll call of the Board.  In accordance with the Governor’s emergency proclamation dated 
November 29, 2021, related to COVID-19 as extended by the emergency proclamation related to the 
sunshine law in-person meeting dated December 29, 202, Chair called the name of each board member 
and asked them to identify their presence with a “here” or “present” and to state who if anyone was present 
in the room with them.  Chair stated that the roll call served as the roll call vote, and for each subsequent 

005



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

2 
 

vote, the Chair would ask if there were any objections.  If there were no objections the motion would be 
approved on the same basis as the initial roll call.  
 
Roll call:  Chair, Ms. Evans, Mr. Gomes, Mr. Haraguchi, Mr. Hong, Mr. Manuel, Ms. Seddon, Ms. 
Shimabukuro-Geiser, Mr. Tabata, and Mr. Watanabe acknowledged attendance with no guests present.  

 
C.  Approval of Minutes  
  

November 10, 2021, minutes 
Motion to approve:  Ms. Evans, Second: Mr. Tabata 
No staff comment. 
No public comment. 
Ms. Shimabukuro-Geiser said on page 9, paragraph 9, NRCA should be NRCS.   
Minutes approved with amendment: 10/0 

 
D.  NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. Presentation by Mike Faye of Kekaha Agriculture Association (KAA) Regarding a Managed 

Wetlands Proposal 
 
 Mr. Faye, manager of KAA, stated that KAA would like the Agribusiness Development Corporation (ADC) 

to consider their proposal.  He shared a power point presentation. 
  
 After the presentation, Mr. Faye asked Mr. Gomez if he had anything to add, and if the board members had 

any questions. 
 
 Chair asked where on the map was the in-kind easement that Mr. Faye mentioned?   
 
 Mr. Faye responded that the easement was a ground hazard area that basically encompasses all the land 

from Polihale to Mana.  It’s a large arch that goes from the Kauai test facility on PMRF and extends to the 
base of the Pali.  It’s all on ADC land; maybe a few fringe pieces that are DHHL but virtually all ADC. 

 
 Chair asked if he knew how many acres it was? 
 
 Mr. Faye said his guess was about 5,000 acres.  Mr. Gomez was available to answer questions. 
 
 Mr. Gomes asked if Mr. Faye had any pictures of the ditch and the 200-acre area of the flood plain?  By 

putting the water into the flood plain, how much reduction of silt did they think would not be going into the 
ocean? 

 
 Mr. Gomez responded it should filter out all the coarse silt, so everything coarser than 63 microns or 63 

thousandths of a millimeter.  That would make a significant difference. 
 
 Mr. Gomes said listening to the presentation, even if you get an inch of rain, you see there were some 

detrimental effects.  By doing this, do they anticipate how many inches of rain they can handle?  
 
 Mr. Gomez stated it depends on the amount of water that drains under the influence of gravity.  The 

proposal was aimed at creating a space where water can pond and not escape to the ocean under the 
influence of gravity.  The flood in 2020 delivered about 13 inches of rain over a two-day period. They could 
reasonably expect to handle that runoff. 

006



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

3 
 

 Mr. Faye added it’s important to note that while this was primarily intended for storm runoff on the large 
storms, it would also serve to trap sediment throughout their regular amount of pumping and water entering 
the plain. It would make the water a lot cleaner even on a day-to-day basis. 

 
 Mr. Gomes said sure, as it percolates through the ground and so forth. 
 
 Mr. Faye agreed.  It traps the sediment where they can then use it.  KAA had been using the sediment, as a 

result of the sugar operation prior to the current operations, as landfill cover and they do make a little money 
on it.  He’s hoping they’re able to design this in such a way that they can actually harvest the sediment and 
increase the elevation of some of the lower fields and keep ahead of sea level rise.  It would be better to put 
it on their property rather than have it flow by way of storms or regularly into the ocean.  They can use the 
soil on their property. 

 
 Mr. Gomes asked about the silt that is going in the ocean now, was it damaging any of the reefs?  If the silt 

kills the reefs, we have the reef fish, you know, they can’t populate. 
 
 Mr. Gomez responded they were unaware of any studies that indicated storm runoff has impacted the reef. 
 
 Mr. Gomes said the water gets all brown right? 
 
 Mr. Gomez responded correct. 
 
 Mr. Manuel thanked Mr. Faye and Mr. Gomez for the presentation.  He said thank you for talking about the 

potential use of the sediment basin and how that sediment was going to be used.  He had a couple of 
questions.  It was mentioned that the community was supportive of this, and he has had many conversations 
with Mr. Faye before.  This area used to be like a big pond.  He’s curious how the community response has 
been to the presentation and if there’s a way to basically utilize this “pond” as a way to reconnect the 
community to that historic use of what was a wetland before.  How have those conversations occurred?   

 
 Mr. Faye said right now they’re at the very early stages and they haven’t gone into a formal engagement 

with the community on this.  There is a family group that maintains some of the gravesites and cultural areas 
and they are part of the group they talk to.  They have expressed interest in the program.  If they can get 
ADC approval, they would definitely engage them further.  They have talked to bird people, although it was 
not intended to be a bird sanctuary because it’s near the PMRF runways.  One of KAA’s conditions going 
forward was it had to be beneficial to the agricultural uses on the plain.  This was how they approached it.  
But they do need to engage the community groups in a formal setting. 

 
 Mr. Manuel said Mr. Faye talked about reuse of the sediment. Since they’re basically holding/retaining 

stormwater, was there a desire to use the stormwater for irrigation or were they going to rely solely on 
surface water to meet irrigation demands? 

 
 Mr. Faye responded in the past sugar did recycle that water, they did pump it back up.  That is a possible use 

of it.  To be honest, they had not considered that but yes, definitely it could be used for additional irrigation.   
 
 Mr. Manuel said mahalo, in climate consideration and this crisis, stormwater retention and reuse is 

something that they’re thinking through, throughout the state so if that can be built in that would be really 
awesome. Could you clarify what KAA needs from ADC, is it matching funds or is it approval of the 
easement?  He didn’t really understand what the relationship or the action was.   

 

007



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

4 
 

 Mr. Faye stated that KAA just manages the infrastructure, and ADC manages the property.  They could set 
it up as a program but at some point, KAA needs ADC’s approval to extend the easement or make a long-
term commitment on that particular property.  Discussions so far indicate that an easement was sufficient. 

 
 Mr. Manuel said one last thing.  Talking about sea level rise, we’ll see the water table rise and then there’s 

possible saltwater intrusion in the soil.  To manage flood water from mauka to makai, as the water table 
rises, they’re going to see saltwater intrusion into the soil.  Mr. Gomez, how does KAA plan to mitigate that 
from an agricultural standpoint, so the soils are actually protected? 

 
 Mr. Gomez responded that their calculations estimate the amount of intrusion will be minimal and the effect 

sea level rise will have on the ambient water table can be handled by pumping, which was one of the reasons 
why they need to increase the capacity of the pumps. 

 
 Chair called on Ms. Evans. 
 
 Ms. Evans said her question was for Ms. Kaichi or Mr. Faye.  Who issued the easement, for what purpose, 

and what was the start date?  Does it expire in 2029?  She may have gotten that date wrong. 
 
 Mr. Faye said he believes the easement started in 2010 but he’s not 100% sure who mentioned it, might 

have been DLNR that executed the easement. 
 
 Ms. Kaichi confirmed that ADC heard about it serendipitously.  It was put on the land after ADC received 

the set aside and they found out about it later. 
 
 Ms. Evans asked if the land board approved the easement over lands that had already been transferred to 

ADC by Executive Order (EO).  Was the easement to KAA or ADC? 
 
 Ms. Kaichi asked if they were talking about the easement to the USA? 
 
 Mr. Faye said it was either to PMRF or to the AEGIS program.  If they use that easement that would be the 

easiest, but another kind of easement document could potentially be used. 
 
 Ms. Evans said she was guessing this was a non-exclusive easement since it’s 5,000 acres and ADC tenants 

were using the land for agriculture and KAA was also within the easement boundaries maintaining the 
irrigation system, would that be a good guess? 

 
 Mr. Faye said it’s basically an easement that allows PMRF, if they have a missile launch, to evacuate all 

personnel from that exclusion area. 
 
 Ms. Evans asked so it’s a protective easement for particular circumstances for national security? 
 
 Mr. Faye responded that’s correct. 
 
 Ms. Evans asked if it’s been granted to PMRF, by DLNR’s land board, was ADC named in the easement or 

does ADC have authority to use it or extend it? 
 
 Mr. Faye asked Ms. Kaichi if she could respond.  
 
 Ms. Kaichi said she would research it and get back to her. 
 

008



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

5 
 

 Chair asked if any other member had questions or further discussion.  He thanked Mr. Faye and Mr. Gomez. 
 
2. Presentation by David Bissel of Kauai Island Utility Cooperative Regarding the West Kauai Energy 

Project 
 
 Mr. Bissel introduced himself as President and CEO of Kauai Island Utility Cooperative (KIUC) and 

proceeded with the slide presentation on the overview of the West Kauai Energy Project.  There was no 
action needed today and he could answer any questions.   

  
 Ms. Evans stated it was an exciting presentation and she looked forward to this project.  At the previous 

Land Use Commission (LUC) meeting KIUC requested that the LUC defer action on an Important 
Agricultural Land (IAL) petition by KAA because KIUC did not have enough information about the impact 
of the IAL designation on KAA tenants.  Has that been worked out?  Are they comfortable that an IAL 
designation overlay for the agricultural tenants won’t impact their plan? 

 
 Mr. Bissel said no, they have not been able to get together yet, but they fully expect it will get resolved. 
 
 Ms. Evans asked what kind of risks made them decided to request a deferral from the LUC on the KAA IAL 

petition? 
 
 Mr. Bissel responded, that’s an interesting question.  They only became aware of the petition the night 

before the hearing, so it was more just a concern of the unknown.  As they’ve talked more on it internally 
and with some advisors, they hope that there isn’t a significant risk, it might just be an issue on where the 
powerhouse would be carved out.  The project footprint was about 5-acres.  We’re pretty optimistic we can 
get it done.  We have to get together and chat. 

 
 Ms. Evans asked if Mike Faye was still present, she’d like to ask a follow-up question of him. 
 
 Mr. Faye rejoined the meeting. 
 
 Ms. Evans asked Mr. Faye if he heard Mr. Bissel’s concern about carving out the power plant and other key 

infrastructure for the West Kauai Energy project from the IAL petition.  Was he comfortable with pursuing 
that discussion? 

 
 Mr. Faye responded yes; they are.  They actually had an informal discussion with one of KIUC’s consultants 

when Mr. Roe was out visiting.  As Mr. Bissel mentioned, KAA doesn’t see this as a major obstacle.  KAA 
thought there might be some benefits to them having it on IAL lands but if it’s going to be an issue, they had 
a KAA board meeting the day before and it was informally discussed that it was no big deal, KAA can 
withdraw it.  As mentioned, it’s only about 5-acres and it’s not a big deal for KAA. 

 
 Ms. Evans thanked him then addressed Mr. Bissel, stating he mentioned complying with the requirement to 

have agricultural activities take place in the area where the solar panel array would be.  Does he see 
potential there for IAL tax credits for ADC farmers doing agricultural activities under, around and beneath 
their solar arrays? 

 
 Mr. Bissell stated he was not familiar enough with that to comment, but perhaps Mr. Faye could respond. 
 
 Mr. Faye said it was an interesting question they could discuss further with KIUC.  KAA discussed with 

some of the people interested in farming out there about different types of agriculture that may be 
compatible with the solar panels.  Would KIUC benefit from IAL designation of the solar panels?  It gets 

009



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

6 
 

into some complicated issues beyond his pay grade.  KAA had actually excluded the solar panels from their 
IAL because they had sufficient other land in the petition. 

 
 Mr. Hong said he had a couple of questions.  He thinks it’s a first major pump storage project in the islands 

so that’s going to be very exciting.  Did he hear right that the output of the solar system is 24-megawatts or 
is the capacity of the stored water?  

 
 Mr. Bissell responded the PV system will be 35 megawatts AC the pump uphill.  It will be 24-megawatts 

when it comes down because of the loss of energy in the conversion.  So, it will be a 20-megawatt generator 
on the Mana Plains and a 4-megawatt generator up higher on the Puu Opae reservoir area. 

 
 Mr. Hong said that Mr. Bissell answered his other question but asked if they’re looking at 250+ acres for the 

solar farm? 
 
 Mr. Bissell responded that was correct. 
 
 Mr. Hong said that is pretty substantial.  Do you have a general timeframe for when the main phases for the 

project will be done?  When will they be first online, when will they be at full capacity? 
 
 Mr. Bissell responded to receive the federal tax credits they need to be online by the end of 2025. That’s 

really the drop dead point now.  AES has to be comfortable that the project’s moving fast enough to get 
those tax credits.  We’ve got to get through the environmental and the land documents in the next year, year 
and a half to keep it on track and get it done.  Regarding efficiency, it’s a very complex project but all the 
pieces come together to make it work.  And the incremental hydro, that 4-megawatt hydro project he talked 
about where they will have the actual ditch water coming through for irrigation that will repeat 4 megawatts 
at Puu Opae and then 4 megawatts when it comes down.  And that generation from the incremental hydro 
used for agriculture basically covers a lot of the losses on the conversion of the solar through the pumping 
so that’s what makes the project competitive with other technologies. 

 
 Mr. Hong stated it’s great that they’re able to look at the ancillary benefits, it makes the whole project really 

work together.  So, we’re talking about federal tax credits, is that the one that is still at 26 or 22%.   
 
 Mr. Bissell said that’s 26 and for AES one of the things they did, they got grandfathered in at that so as long 

as they meet the deadline it will stay at 26.  There are clients that are 10% over the coming years. 
 
 Mr. Hong asked is there any State tax credit. 
 
 Mr. Bissell said yes there are.  This project is still eligible for the 30% state tax credits. 
 
 Mr. Hong thanked Mr. Bissell and wished him luck. 
 
 Chair asked if this project was going to make electricity cheaper, more expensive or status quo for the 

residents of Kauai? 
 
 Mr. Bissell said it’s always difficult to forecast energy because you look at what oil’s going to over an 

extended period.  But they forecast it will save about $175 million dollars in present value terms for the 
people of Kauai.  Definitely forecast it will save money. 

 
 Chair said thank you, it’s an exciting project.  Chair asked if there were any other questions.  Hearing none, 

he thanked Mr. Bissell. 

010



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

7 
 

 
Chair called for a 10-minute recess at 10:06 a.m. 
 
Chair called the meeting back to order at 10:18 a.m. 
 
3. Request for Approval to Issue a License to Hanahanapuni Farm for 259 Acres, More or Less, of Unit 

L in Kalepa, Kauai, Tax Map Key (4) 3-9-002:001 (por) 
 
 Motion to Approve: Ms. Evans, Second: Mr. Haraguchi 
 
 Mr. Roe said he had no real presentation but wanted to note that on the pro-forma portion of the submittal, 

under character of use, should include orchard.  Otherwise, he was available for questions. 
 
 Chair asked if there was anyone from the public who wished to give testimony.  There was none.   
 
 Chair asked Mr. Roe if they had been paying the rent. 
 
 Mr. Roe responded yes, last he checked they were current. 
 
 Mr. Manuel said he had a couple of questions.  The submittal says that water flows through the north 

Waialua fork but how does the property currently access water for its agricultural production? 
  
 Mr. Roe responded he thinks they collect rainwater; he doesn’t think they’re collecting water from 

anywhere else. That speaks to the lack of agricultural production on the property right now.  It’s probably 
more suited for livestock, but they seem to think they can have some agricultural production.   

 
 Mr. Manuel said in their submittal it says they’ve been there for 22 years, but you didn’t confirm if it’s 

rainwater or through some other way…you don’t know. 
 
 Mr. Roe responded he didn’t see any other irrigation or other access from the property to their fields. 
  
 Mr. Manuel asked was the unimproved, unpermitted structure a residence and does the license allow 

residences or to reside on property? 
 
 Mr. Roe said the license does not allow for residences.  He spoke to Ginger, who mentioned a few years 

back there was a fugitive on the loose and they had constructed that for overnight security, but they don’t do 
that currently.  He told her at the time it was not an allowed use. 

 
 Mr. Manuel said the compensation was somewhat confusing.  The breakdown was 99 acres of tillable and 

160 untillable.  How much of the tillable was diversified ag versus pastoral?  What’s the expected annual 
income from this?  The submittal has a breakdown of what they plan to do, and that adds up to 87.41 acres. 

 
 Mr. Roe responded on the second page, the utilization plan under section E, notes 33.33 acres and 28 of the 

33 acres was designated to Green Energy team.  That’s part of Green Energy’s license.  The 80 was more 
like 79.65 acres they have accounted for.  There’s about 19.35 acres unaccounted for.  That might be the 
structure or the roads.  For our purposes, we include the balance of that 19.35 acres as diversified agriculture 
since that unit was unstructured.  Based on the utilization plan, between orchard, pasture, and diversified 
Ag, he’s looking at 29.53 acres of orchard, 31.75 acres of pasture, 18.37 of diversified Ag, 19.35 
unaccounted for but which he would classify as diversified ag, and then 60 acres of untillable at roughly 
$1/acre per year.  We’re looking at roughly, $5,770.40 annually or $480.86 per month. 

011



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

8 
 

 
 Mr. Manuel said thank you, that’s very helpful.  It would be helpful to have that total at the end.   
 
 Mr. Roe said he received the utilization plan at the last minute and he didn’t have time to go through and 

make the calculations. In the future that’s his intent. 
 
 Mr. Manuel said he had one or two more questions.  The untillable lands, couldn’t that be used for pasture?  

He’s just trying to make sure that ADC is not just giving it away and  if it’s eventually going to become 
pastoral use or pasture use maybe it’s worth the $30/acre not just the $1.   

 
 Mr. Roe responded that the untillable portions of the property were really gulch, ravine, cliffs, ravine walls, 

and he doesn’t see it as useable. 
 
 Mr. Manuel said that’s very helpful.  Lastly, he thinks maybe it can be made a standard, but can ADC 

request annual reporting of the total pounds produced on property and how much was for local consumption 
versus export.  This metric and tracking over time will benefit ADC.  So, if that can be amended so we can 
track data for our licensees, that would be awesome.  It’s just a friendly amendment for this license. 

 
 Chair stated that’s a really good suggestion. 
 
 Ms. Evans stated she’d like to suggest a different approach.  Rather than amending the motion for this 

particular license approval, she would like to take this up as a part of the Permitted Interaction Group (PIG) 
on Policies and Procedures and make it a policy for all of the licenses rather than doing it on an individual 
basis.  She asked Mr. Manuel if that would be acceptable. 

 
 Mr. Manuel responded that he’s just thinking if it can be done for this request now.  Unless they’re going to 

circle back and amend all licenses at once to include this provision, he thinks they should just do it now 
since it’s before them.  It’s a simple annual reporting requirement, but it’s up to Ms. Evans 

 
 Ms. Evans stated that she’d like to defer it.  This is a short-term license and she’d prefer to make a general 

policy for the Board’s consideration when the PIG reports its recommendations to the full board.  That’s just 
her preference on the motion before them.  And she had a question on the 5.35 acres to be cleared of albizia 
and hau trees, are those going to Green Energy?  This question has come up before with Kalepa.  Do a 
significant number of the DLNR holdover licensees have agreements with Green Energy to provide alien 
species trees like albizia for the production of biomass energy on Kauai? 

 
 As Mr. Roe hinted to earlier, when the EO came over as a transfer to ADC, part of the agreement amongst 

the tenants was for Green Energy to take a portion, he thinks a thousand acres over the entire property, so 
each tenant gave up a little bit.  This tenant gave up 28 acres.  We’re not aware of any grower agreement 
that this tenant has with Green Energy team.   

 
 Ms. Evans asked if they would have the right to sell those trees to Green Energy should Green Energy be 

interested? 
 
 Mr. Roe responded he would think so.  He said we would want to make sure that Green Energy was 

accessing the property under an appropriate document like a right of entry.  He said he’d have to look at the 
terms, but he thinks it’s potentially agreeable. 

 
 Ms. Evans said it’s a form of agriculture and certainly it would help farmers who have those alien species 

trees to generate revenue for their operations.   

012



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

9 
 

 
 Chair asked if there was any further discussion.  Hearing none, the Chair called for the vote.  Hearing no 

objection, the motion was approved.   
 
 Vote:  Approved, 10-0 
 
4. Request for Approval to Issue a Land License to the University of Hawaii, College of Tropical 

Agriculture and Human Resources (CTAHR) for Weather Recording Purposes in Central Oahu, Tax 
Map Key (1) 6-4-003-016 (por) 

 
 Motion to Approve:  Mr. Haraguchi, Second: Mr. Gomes 
 
 Chair asked for presentation by staff. 
 
 Mr. Roe stated he has no presentation other than what was submitted but he is available for questions. 
 
 Chair asked for public testimony.  There was none. 
 
 Chair asked if there was any discussion. 
 
 Mr. Manuel had a question for staff and maybe an amendment.  When we  provide these licenses for data 

collection, is that data and information shared with ADC?  
 
 Mr. Roe responded yes; it is. 
 
 Chair said he spoke with the Assistant Dean of CTAHR and he’s willing to share all of the data.  The 

property is on the parcel we just licensed to Cedar Grove.  The data has been collected and retained by the 
University and they will share it with all of our tenants.  Good question. 

 
 Mr. Manuel was just wondering again, maybe something for the policy group to take up that when we issue 

licenses for data collection that ADC be given unrestricted access to that data for its use.  Data management 
is really important and something we should consider as an agency across the board. 

 
 Chair said he thinks this one began with Costco, so he doesn’t think we had an agreement with Costco. 
 
 Mr. Roe said he doesn’t think we would issue a license if the information wasn’t shared; it’s essentially our 

payment. 
 
 Chair asked if there were any further questions.  Hearing none, the Chair called for the vote.  Hearing no 

objection, the motion was approved.   
 
 Vote: Approved 10-0 
 
5. Update Related to a “Notice of Violation” by City and County of Honolulu, Department of Planning 

and Permitting (DPP) for “two dwelling structures constructed on property without the required 
building permit” Located on Premises Licensed to William H. Wise III dba Waihii Farms and 
Kalama Hardwood LLC 

 
 Mr. Roe stated he received an update this morning from Mr. Nakatani that the City and County of Honolulu 

was rescinding the violation and the accumulation of fines were voided.  Mr. Wise was going to obtain a 

013



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

10 
 

permit for the structures.  He had a conversation with DPP who noted that it was not uncommon for legacy 
structures to be unpermitted.  He believes Mr. Wise has already obtained an architect to draw up the plans 
and he’s working with DPP to obtain the structure permits.  

 
 Chair asked if they are living in the structure. 
 
 Mr. Roe responded yes, that was known when he obtained the license. 
 
 Mr. Gomes asked when ADC took over the land, why wouldn’t these structures be classified as historical 

because of the timeframe it was built in the 40’s and 50’s? 
 
 Mr. Roe responded he can’t answer that, and he doesn’t want to say what he doesn’t know. 
 
 Mr. Gomes said he’s just curious because back then the codes, the building codes then and what they are 

today is totally different and now this guy has a violation for a home that he didn’t construct, it was there. 
 
 Chair asked Mr. Roe, “so we are not paying the $600 fine for the sewer either right? 
 
 Mr. Roe responded that is a different citation issued by a different entity, that is actually the next item on the 

agenda.  The rescission and avoiding of the fines apply to the DPP violation for structures. 
 
 Chair asked if we need a vote on this since it’s been rescinded.  
 
 Mr. Roe responded this was just intended as an update. 
 
 Ms. Shimabukuro-Geiser stated she has a question.  When ADC purchased this property, were we aware 

that there were unpermitted dwellings? 
  
 Mr. Roe said he wasn’t here at the time so he can’t say what people were aware of although he believes the 

appraisal indicated that it was unpermitted.   
 
 Ms. Shimabukuro-Geiser said that ADC needs to put some teeth in the policies to strengthen disclosure by 

the tenants about unpermitted structures.  You know farmers, it’s common practice that they construct things 
sometimes without permits and hold their breath there is no complaint from someone.  She’s concerned that 
moving forward, since we’re going through these policy developments that we have something really clear.   

 
 Mr. Roe said ok. 
  
 Mr. Gomes stated that Ms. Shimabukuro-Geiser is absolutely correct.  He also thinks that if there are 

structures, we should know what they are, when they’re built and so forth and that should be part of the 
policy. 

 
 Mr. Manuel said just to rift off of that, this maybe again for the policy group, an acquisition policy, this 

should be part of normal due diligence and that prior to acquisition all unpermitted or unallowed usage 
should be cured by the current landowners and their tenants before we acquire because we’re taking on these 
liabilities.  He apologized stating he’s wearing his prior hat working for DHHL. 

 
 Mr. Gomes commented “absolutely”. 
 

014



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

11 
 

 Mr. Manuel continued that these are important acquisition policies to protect ADC from liability and future 
damages.  That should definitely be taken more seriously in acquisition. 

 
 Ms. Evans said she has been taking notes for the Policy and Procedures Permitted Interaction Group.  Based 

on Mr. Gomes’s thoughts, things that were built prior to zoning and in the territorial period, they may be 
“unpermitted”, but they may also be non-conforming structures that are allowed to continue until they burn 
down, or they have to be repaired by more than 50% or some other ordinance guided thing.  It doesn’t mean 
all unpermitted structures are a violation, it just may mean that they’re covered under a different ordinance 
that Mr. Gomes noted. 

 
 Chair asked if there was any further discussion. We don’t need to vote on this. 
 
6. Request for Approval to Pay Fines Related to a “Field Citation” Issued by State of Hawaii, 

Department of Health, Wastewater Branch for “unauthorized wastewater system” Located on 
Premises Licensed to William H. Wise III dba Waihii Farms and Kalama Hardwood LLC 

  
 Motion to Approve:  Ms. Evans, Second: Mr. Gomes 
 
 Mr. Roe stood on his submittal and was available for questions. 
 
 Chair asked if there was anyone from the public who wished to testify?  There was none.   
 
 Chair asked for further discussion. 
 
 Mr. Watanabe asked Mr. Roe if the current cesspools were in existence, but they chose to install the 

unpermitted septic tank? 
 
 Mr. Roe responded, yes. 
 
 Mr. Watanabe said he doesn’t think ADC was responsible for the septic tank portion. 
 
 Mr. Roe said that maybe Ms. Prescott-Tate could speak to this, but he thought that if it’s on ADC property 

the citation was issued by DOH to ADC. 
 
 Mr. Nakatani said he would speak on this.  The property had a cesspool and Mr. Wise was trying to comply 

with a septic tank so actually he was trying to do good.  Because the septic tank wasn’t approved by the 
health department, it didn’t pass muster.  The original facility had a cesspool and that’s the worse thing that 
could happen right?  So, this person was trying to put a septic tank to resolve that but apparently, he didn’t 
do it correctly so he’s taking the proper action at this time going through the proper channels.  He’s working 
with the health department to make everything whole.  The fine was just a violation, and it wasn’t his fault 
that this cesspool was there.  He was actually trying to help us and just did it wrong. Thank you. 

  
 Mr. Hong questioned, under the citation, you’re assessed penalties, $600 for the first violation, a penalty fee 

of $200 was applied for each cesspool and the septic tank.  He agrees with Mr. Watanabe that we have the 
responsibility for the cesspool but the fact that the tenant did it wrong and there’s a fine for not getting 
permits for the septic tank, that’s the tenant’s responsibility. 

 
 Chair asked Mr. Roe, what was ADC paying, the $600, or what is ADC paying for? 
 

015



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

12 
 

 Mr. Roe stated the request was to pay the $600 since this was assessed to ADC.  If Chair would refer to the 
recommendation, one of the conditions was, pending further investigation, staff may determine that it’s 
appropriate to bill the licensee for the cost of the fine.  Because it was assessed to ADC, it’s appropriate to 
get this fine paid.  If you refer to the letter from DOH Wastewater Branch, if ADC doesn’t pay, it goes to an 
administrative hearing which may assess a steeper fine.  In the interest of ADC’s own liability, we should 
take care of this first and deal with any assessment of blame afterwards. 

 
 Mr. Tabata said, so, if he read this correctly, there were cesspools there that were operable, and the lessee 

took it upon himself to install the septic.  If it was by others prior to him taking over the property, then yes, 
ADC should pay the fine, but the tenant did it to himself.  Mr. Tabata disagreed with paying the fine. 

 
 Mr. Nakatani strongly disagreed with this assertion. 
 
 Mr. Haraguchi agreed with staff that we should pay it to alleviate future fines because staff has also given 

the opportunity to go back to the tenant to collect the fines.  We should just move on, go with the staff’s 
recommendation, and deal with the matter with the tenant at a later date.  Thank you. 

 
 Mr. Hong agreed with that. 
 
 Chair called for the vote.  Hearing no objection, the motion was approved.   
 
 Vote:  Approved 10-0, Mr. Manuel with reservations  
  
7. Request for Approval to Issue Licenses to the Tenant Review and Recommendation Committee’s 

Recommendations for ADC Land License 
 
 Motion to Approve: Mr. Haraguchi, Second: Mr. Gomes 
 
 Mr. Nakamoto said last year ADC set out to find tenants for vacant lands and they issued 4 of the 5 licenses. 

The fifth parcel, located in Mililani mauka, was a 91-acre parcel.  The tenant they were looking at was 
Malama Aina Collective.  At the last board meeting he explained they’re currently growing banana, casaba, 
and wet and dry land taro in a farm in Mililani.  They also plan to do starter trees, fruit trees, avocado, citrus, 
and other niche crops.  Staff recommendations adopting the tenant review committee recommendation that 
was presented at the last board meeting.  He’s open for questions or discussion. 

 
 Chair asked if there was anyone from the public that wished to give testimony. 
 
 There was none. 
 
 Chair asked if there was any discussion? 
 
 Mr. Manuel asked if the license conditions were the same as what was in exhibit A or was there going to be 

explicit license conditions brought back to the board for approval? 
 
 Mr. Nakamoto responded yes; they would come back to the board.  First, they issue a right of entry to the 

farmers so that they can do their due diligence as far as conservation plans.  Then they will come back to the 
board for specific license terms and conditions. 

 
 Mr. Manuel said he wanted to make a similar request for annual reporting of what was produced as a 

condition of the license when it comes back. 

016



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

13 
 

 
 Ms. Shimabukuro-Geiser had a question for Mr. Roe.  Do the ADC licenses include standard language that 

the licensee will follow all rules, State, Federal, County rules and laws? Is that standard in our license? 
 
 Mr. Roe responded yes, that’s not even a negotiable point. 
 
 Ms. Shimabukuro-Geiser said to avoid any kind of misunderstanding regarding people doing unpermitted 

activity moving forward, when we issue the licenses, staff should meet with the new licensee to make sure 
they go over the requirements.  She really wants to make sure they understand that boilerplate language. 

 
 Mr. Roe responded ok. 
 
 Chair asked if there was any other discussion?  Hearing none, the Chair called for the vote.  Hearing no 

objection, the motion was approved.   
 
 Vote: Approved 10-0. 
 
8. Appointment of Members to the Standing “Administrative Committee” for the Purpose of 

Conducting the Annual Performance Evaluation of the Executive Director.   
  
 Chair read Article IV, Section I of the By-laws of the Agribusiness Development Corporation that 

established three standing committees, one of which was the Administration committee pursuant to Article 
IV, Section 1b.  The Administration Committee shall review and make recommendations regarding all 
personnel matters requiring approval of the Board of Directors. Pursuant to Article IV, Section II, the 
Chairperson of the Board of Directors shall appoint the members of the standing committee.  A standing 
committee shall have three members.  The Chairperson of the Board of directors may serve as an ex-officio 
voting member of any standing committee. 

 
 Chair assigned three members to the standing committee: Mr. Hong, Mr. Haraguchi and Mr. Watanabe. 

Chair thanked them for volunteering.  He knows it’s a lot of work and he appreciates their time. 
 
9. Request to Delegate Authority to ADC Executive Director to Negotiate and Purchase Three Deep 

Wells in Paalaa Uka, District of Waialua, Oahu from Dole Food Company, Inc. 
 
 Motion to Approved:  Mr. Manuel, Second: Mr. Gomes 
 
 Chair asked for presentation by staff. 
 
 Ms. Kaichi rested on her submission and was available for questions.  She does ask for guidance from the 

board.  Previously when ADC did acquisitions over the last ten years, they did not verify, or they did not 
require sellers to cure all possible violations.   It’s sort of the way, DLNR purchases property. The property 
ADC buys were older, one hundred years old with one entity.  In our case it will be Dole and Castle and 
Cook, whose entities have evolved over time, have changed ownership, sent out for public offering, have 
been repurchased in by the owner but they are virtually the same company.  Dole and Castle and Cook over 
the last one hundred years have merged and separated, but it was really primarily these two companies.  
ADC does have some other parcels from other sellers, but the bulk of our lands were from these sellers.  We 
have not required the sellers to cure these types of violations but after listening to this morning’s discussion 
on the Waihee farm problem, she does want some guidance to help understand how much due diligence the 
board wants to do; how much they want cured.  She personally doesn’t know what the permitting 
requirements were for accessories to a well, like pumps, lines.  From the discussion this morning, she thinks 

017



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

14 
 

the board was saying that it’s not willing to approve acquisition of real-estate where there were possible or 
existing violations of permitting requirements.  

 
 Chair asked if it was put together during the due diligence period when they find out more about these 

properties that ADC was looking at purchasing. 
 
 Ms. Kaichi said the question that she has and the problem that she foresees is during negotiations, this is the 

time that they would demand cure of known defects or known violations.  She said, for a hundred-year-old 
property, where the seller is giving us a limited warranty and promising that everything for the most part is 
ok, otherwise they buy as is, they have been ok with that.  But from what she heard in this morning’s 
discussion she’s beginning to think that the board is no longer ok with this, and she needs to know that if it 
goes into negotiations.  She said if they want cure, she needs to know that.  She said because it’s a little 
different from the way they have conducted negotiations in the past.  She said if the violation was so big, 
that it was something that was current, was present, was big that it was something they were not willing to 
pay for themselves to cure then of course that was part of the negotiations.  But something like a fifty-year 
old structure, that they didn’t make the demand, her fear was that the seller would probably say, that’s 
alright, they’re not going to spend their time fixing a fifty-year old permitting problem under laws that were 
enacted twenty-nine-years ago.  She was not willing to go that route to figure out what laws apply fifty-
years ago and what applies today. She said, and certainly, this is self-evident, the landowner doesn’t have to 
keep current every year the building code changes. So, it’s really whatever was in effect at the time the 
improvement was done and when you try to do further improvements then you get caught up in all the 
changes in the building permit requirements that occurred from the time you did the last improvements till 
today.  But she thinks ADC’s approach or their concerns, what are being deemed to be the priorities, the 
ability to handle risks are changing and what she sees is more of a requirement or a desire by this board to 
minimize the risk as much as possible.  The ability to handle risk has gotten smaller.  ADC needs to know if 
the board wants them to look at the permitting for each of the accessories to the wells or what they were 
planning to do is look at the structure of each of the wells itself and the aging of the wells and try to 
determine how much is needed to put into these wells to get them back up and running and then start to 
negotiate a fair price with them. But what she is hearing the board say today is that ADC needs to do more.  
ADC needs to look at how much they are willing to cure or that ADC is not willing to purchase at all unless 
it cures itself, any violation.  

 
 Ms. Prescott-Tate stated since that’s not an item on this agenda maybe the board should be defer action on 

this until the next meeting.   
 
 Ms. Kaichi said, the request was to delegate authority. 
 
 Ms. Evans said she thinks that the action is to enter into negotiations which could include due diligence 

she’s in favor of taking action today authorizing the staff to start that process.  And she thinks there are 
unknowns that may develop but she doesn’t anticipate what that might be until they have further 
information.  She thinks the acquisition of water is critical to ADC tenants and the farmers in that area and 
she thinks that is such a valuable part of making agriculture in central Oahu economical that we should enter 
into that negotiation with all due speed. This is just her personal view. 

 
 Chair agreed. 
 
 Mr. Hong said he agreed with that.  The recommendation to appropriate up to $7 million was not based on 

any fact at this point until you go through the due diligence.  You have to go through an appraisal of what 
the remaining estimated economic life of these wells are.  Being fifty years old they are probably at the last 
20% of their life.  Another question, these were wells that were pre-existing before statehood or around 

018



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

15 
 

statehood problem and so do they even have a Commission on Water Resource Management (CWRM) 
permit.  These are the things staff must look at in terms of due diligence, what is the pumping capacity, what 
is the degradation of the water source over the years and what’s the process of getting a CWRM permit to 
rehabilitate the well.  He doesn’t know the answer to any of that is.  There’s a lot of work that needs to be 
done and he doesn’t think you can put a price on it at this point. 

 
 Mr. Haraguchi said he knows the request was for 4.7, let’s say $5 million.  The total is not 8 right, this 

request is for 4.7 and the 3 million will be requested through the legislature for Capital Improvement 
Projects (CIP) during the upcoming session if he reads it correctly. 
  
Ms. Kaichi said they’re negotiating the price right now.  $4.7 is the amount the legislature has appropriated. 
That’s the total amount we have for acquisition.  That’s the most ADC has.  If the demand for the purchase 
price was higher then they can’t buy all three wells. That’s all the money they have, that doesn’t mean that’s 
going to be the purchase price. 

 
 Mr. Haraguchi said Mr. Hong mentioned $8 million.  He’s trying to clarify this saying that $4.7 is the max 

and the $3M will be requested to the ‘22 legislature for CIP funds.   
 
 Ms. Kaichi said that’s right.  Another point of clarification, these wells are permitted, the allocations are 

listed on page 2 of the submittal.  She not willing to spend millions of dollars for wells that were permitted 
if the permits don’t come with the well.  That too was something she would like to negotiate. 

 
 Mr. Manuel appreciated the conversation.  From a water perspective and a well development perspective 

there’s a lot more due diligence that needs to be done before a full delegation of authority, in his opinion, to 
the director should be made.  He wouldn’t recommend full delegation because there’s a lot of cost factors 
that go into bringing in a well that’s built in the 70’s up to standards.  There are costs related to that, permits 
that are required.  Although the water use permits exist for the current wells, under the State water code, a 
change of TMK even, which he’s assuming they will be used for properties beyond the current end uses will 
require permit approvals and modifications from the commission.  Nothing is guaranteed.  These permits 
and processes should probably happen before acquisition occurs.  You would hate to purchase something 
and not be able to use it.  That’s just out of caution. These are the processes that exist within the commission 
of water use management that these wells would have to go through before becoming useable.  In the 
current climate the commission is squeezed even more with well water use for agriculture irrigation because 
the policy for potable water is to use it for highest and best use which is usually potable consumption.  With 
the current crisis on this island, the commission has to really scrutinize wells throughout the state. He’s not 
sure how the commission would act on any modifications of water use permits moving forward, it’s just a 
caveat to put out there for this group to consider. 

 
 Ms. Kaichi responded that ADC would never have the executive director approve a sale without board 

approval.  She suggested changing the recommendation to delegate authority to negotiate, but the sale was 
subject to further board approval. That might address the board’s concern.  Give ADC the authority to 
negotiate and come back to the board with the terms for approval . 

 
 Mr. Hong said due diligence was going to take a while.  We can do all of the background checks, due 

diligence, all that, and then come to the board with a recommendation on the purchase in the next couple of 
meetings.  If the board wants to give the ability to negotiate a price subject to board approval, he’d be ok 
with that too. 

  
 Chair asked if there was any other discussion. 
 

019



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

16 
 

 Ms. Shimabukuro-Geiser asked Ms. Kaichi if before the negotiations, was it staff’s plan to have a consultant 
to do due diligence?  Do they know the water quality of these sources?  Mr. Manuel partially answered her 
question on how much water was going to be available from CWRM for the implementation of the wells.  If 
ADC was pretty confident on what the demand was going to be for use of the three wells, was there a plan 
to hire a consultant to do the due diligence or was it just going to be all in house due diligence? 

 
 Ms. Kaichi responded she had not considered hiring a consultant to help analyze a need for the wells.  After 

listening to the conversation, they may need someone to help assess the accessories, the age of the 
accessories, and permitting of the accessories.  As for the water quality, she had not thought of hiring 
someone for that but again that’s the type of guidance she’s looking for.  She wasn’t planning to hire a 
consultant, but now that Ms. Shimabukuro-Geiser has asked the question, she’s going to think about it.  On 
the amount of water that’s available, this issue has been around since she can remember doing agriculture 
and knowing of people wanting to drill wells.  There’s an issue at CWRM the agriculture community needs 
help with, which is if they were using fresh water as back up, does that allocation count towards the full 
total load of an aquafer regardless of whether it’s a primary use or a backup use?  Are you double counting 
with the backup numbers even if the backup will only occur in the event of a shutdown of the primary 
source?  That’s an issue she doesn’t know the answer to.  These three wells will provide water to the areas 
identified as Z and the two areas to the north east of the map, will be primary water.  The Z’s and the Y’s to 
the left of the wells, will be primarily backup.  Her understanding was that the allocation will count as 
though it’s going to be daily use even if it’s only going to be used in the event of a shutdown.   That’s an 
unrealistic count that errs on the side of caution, so that we preserve, and conserve water use on the one 
hand.  On the other hand, it does count against uses like ours in which it’s going to count against us on the 
allocation of the total amount of that aquafer.  Heads up we have been asked even before we owned the 
wells to reduce, to voluntarily return allocation. 

 
 Mr. Manuel replied, the basic thing to consider for ADC is redundancy is really important for agriculture, 

which the commission recognizes.  However, the commission has an obligation to understand if there were 
alternatives to meet needs, the highest and best use always drives a lot of those conversations.  To the extent 
that surface water, R1 water was available, that’s great and then these wells could be used as potential 
backups when those irrigation sources go down.  The commission has not to date, allocated water for 
redundancy.  It is an issue that needs to be addressed before the Commission on Water Use Management.  
Like Ms. Kaichi highlighted, if that’s proposed it’s part of due diligence that should be clearly laid out of 
about how these wells will help to support ag and what’s needed as a redundancy source for agriculture to 
be successful.  It’s important to get the numbers tight, understand the productivity of these wells.  Some of 
these wells haven’t been used for over twenty years so a pump test would probably be warranted prior to 
applying.  There are other steps for water development that should happen prior to ADC purchasing.  He 
would hate to have ADC purchase a well that’s not productive and you’re stuck with a well that’s now a 
liability.  That’s the context of his comments to staff on this process. 

 
 Ms. Evans stated she would like to make a friendly amendment to the motion on the table as outlined by Mr. 

Hong, that the board delegate ADC executive director and staff to conduct all appropriate and reasonable 
due diligence into the current condition of the three wells, assess the value of pumps and accessories, quality 
of the water and access and distribution easements but delete the portion of that sentence about purchase the 
same in an amount not to exceed $4.7 million.  That would be her friendly amendment to the motion. 

 
 Mr. Tabata seconded the motion 
  
 Chair called for a vote.  All in favor of approving the amended proposal to delegate authority.  Hearing no 

objection, the motion was approved.   
 

020



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

17 
 

 Vote: Approved 10-0. 
 
 Ms. Kaichi told Chair she thinks the board approved amendment of the initial proposal, but he did not get 

approval of the amended proposal. 
 
 Chair called for a vote on the motion as amended.  Hearing no objection, the motion was approved.   
 
 Vote:  Approved 10-0. 
 
E. Old Business 
 
 1. None 
 
F. Executive Director’s Update 
  

1. Mr. Nakatani reported on the KAA Important Agricultural Lands (IAL) petition.  The Land Use 
Commission (LUC) hearing was on 12/23/21 and KIUC had questions on the designation.  The LUC 
asked who owns the land, DLNR or ADC, and that’s something KAA will follow-up on. 

2. Kalepa – Mr. Roe can answer any questions they might have on these pictures of the derelict cars, van, 
and excavator on Mr. Gerald Sanchez’s lot.   

3. Whitmore Project update – ADC was proceeding with UH.  It’s still in the planning stages.  There was 
an appropriation to the DOA for $28 million CIP.  Funds were dedicated to UH, then it came back to 
DOA, and it’s now with DAGS.  DAGS was trying to get the funds released so the project can proceed. 

4. ADC put in five CIP requests to Governor.  ADC was approved for three: 1) related to the wells, it’s $3 
million to connect the wells to the properties ADC owns; 2) the Kekaha ditch modification, and that’s 
Waimea River lawsuit. $3.5 million to help resolve issue with the gates and permits; 3) $6 million for 
Waiahole improvements Kunia – the reservoir and repairing the whole system.  The other two that 
unfortunately didn’t make the cut was the Wahiawa Reclaimed Water Irrigation System and that was for 
planning money for connecting the R1 water planning stages to the ADC lands.  The last item we asked 
for appropriation for Waiaka, Kauai Ag park and that was $500,000.   
 
With regards to the audit report, as soon as we receive it, we will route it to the members. 
 

 Chair asked about item 4 of the CIP, the Wahiawa Reclaimed Water Irrigation System. 
  
 Mr. Nakatani said it’s planning money to get the route for taking out R1 water to the property. 
 
 Chair asked if it still might come back to life, and we still might be able to get the funds?   
 
 Mr. Nakatani said just be aware this was not cast in concrete.  The legislature may decide they want to fund 

all of it, or they may decide to fund none of it.  This is just an FYI to the board.  
 
 Mr. Hong asked, the Wahiawa Reclaimed Water Irrigation, was that the one that takes the water from the 

water treatment plant in Wahiawa and tunnels under the reservoir to the irrigation water reservoir? 
 
 Mr. Nakatani said it’s just the planning funds. 
 
 Mr. Hong asked if it’s related to the project he mentioned? 
 
 Mr. Nakatani responded yes. 

021



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held Virtually on January 26, 2022 
Via Zoom Teleconference 
 

18 
 

 
 Mr. Gomes said he has a question regarding Kalepa, and Mr. Sanchez.  If ADC removes the derelict items 

on the property and bills Mr. Sanchez what’s the recourse if Sanchez doesn’t pay? 
 
 Mr. Roe responded that Mr. Sanchez has a little bit of a rent credit right now.  This particular issue should 

be covered by the performance bond and security deposit. 
 
 Chair asked if there was anything else. 
 
 Mr. Manuel said he had a comment.  He wanted to say as volunteers on this board and himself as ex-officio, 

he didn’t appreciate how Mr. Nakatani addressed the board as decision makers.  He said they are here to 
support him, and they should all be able to ask questions. 

 
 Mr. Nakatani asked if he could interrupt.  
 
 Mr. Manuel asked if he could finish.  They’re all asking questions as decision makers who are ultimately 

held liable for decisions this board makes. He would appreciate respect from Mr. Nakatani when they’re 
asking questions, just to answer the questions and not to critique on the questions that are being asked.  It’s 
fair for Mr. Nakatani to disagree with them and it’s fair for the board to disagree with Mr. Nakatani, but he 
doesn’t appreciate the disrespect and it’s unfortunate that Mr. Nakatani’s mike was live, and this was being 
recorded.  He thinks Mr. Nakatani owes the board an apology for the unprofessional, disrespect that you 
displayed in this board meeting.  And that’s coming from somebody that manages another board and 
commission, he would never do that to any of his decision makers and volunteers.  Thank you. 

 
 Mr. Gomes said he agrees with Mr. Manuel. 
 
 Mr. Nakatani said that before Mr. Manuel spoke, he was planning to apologize to all the board members for 

expressing his strong disagreement.  He apologized, he got emotional and let the pressure get to him. It’s 
just a frustrating time having to go through the audit, and he apologized. 

 
 Mr. Manuel said mahalo, he appreciates the apology.  They’re all under pressure and he himself was 

subpoenaed.  They want to see Ag succeed and it’s challenging, he understands.  They just need to respect 
each other and the roles they play.  He thanked Mr. Nakatani for the apology. 

 
G.  Adjourn 
 

Chair asked for a motion to adjourn. 
 
Motion made by Mr. Gomes, Second: Ms. Evans 
 

 Hearing no objection, the motion was approved.  Meeting adjourned at 11:26 a.m. 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Lynette H. Marushige 
Secretary 

 

022



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JOSH GREEN 
Lt. Governor 

JAMES J. NAKATANI 
Executive Director 

STATE OF HAWAII 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 

Phone:  (808) 586-0186   Fax:  (808) 586-0189 

ITEM D-1 

 
March 16, 2022 

 
 
 
Subject: Request for Approval for Sunrise Capital, Inc. Under Lease 

Agreement No. S-5367 to Construct Greenhouses and Settling 
Ponds in Kekaha, Kauai, Tax Map Keys (4) 1-2-002:022 

 
Licensee/Lessee: Sunrise Capital, Inc. 
 
Authority:  Section 163D-4(a)(5), Hawaii Revised Statutes 
 
Area:   5.195 gross acres 
 
Field No(s).:  Parcel 22 
 
Tax Map Key:  (4) 1-2-002:022 
 
Land Status:  Set aside by the Governor’s Executive Order No. 4660 to the 

Agribusiness Development Corporation for Agricultural and 
Related Purposes 

 
Trust Land Status:  Ceded land under Section 5(b) lands of the Hawaii Admission Act 
     Yes  X  No ___ 
 

DHHL 30% entitlement lands pursuant to the Hawaii State 
Constitution?  Yes  X  No ___ 

 
Character of Use:  Aquaculture 
 
Land Doc. Type:  Lease 
 
Term:  35 years (currently in year 27) 
 
Rental Rate:  $3,180 per year 
 

 

023



Request for Approval for Sunrise Capital, Inc. Under Lease Agreement No. S-5367 to Construct Greenhouses 
and Settling Ponds in Kekaha, Kauai, Tax Map Keys (4) 1-2-002:022 
March 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Lease Agreement No. S-5367 was issued by the Department of Land and Natural Resources 
(“DLNR”) to Sunkiss Shrimp Co., Ltd in February 1995 for the subject parcel, and was 
subsequently assigned to Sunrise Capital, Inc. by that certain Assignment and Assumption of 
Lease which was recorded in 2005 with DLNR’s consent. In 2006, DLNR consented to the 
merger of Kona Bay Marine Resources Inc. and Sunrise Capital, Inc. (“Lessee”), with Sunrise 
being the surviving entity. Although it faced many early challenges, the Lessee, through its 
research and breeding operations, became one of the leading sources of “specific pathogen 
free” Pacific white shrimp brood stock1 for export to shrimp farms in Asia.  
 
On September 23, 2021, Governor’s Executive Order No. 4660 transferred, among other 
lands, the control and management of the subject parcel TMK (4) 1-2-002:022 (“Parcel 22”) 
(see “Exhibit A”) to the Agribusiness Development Corporation (“ADC”). 
 
In December 2021, Sunrise submitted a request to expand their brood stock ponds.  
 
LAND REQUEST: 
 
Licensee requests permission to construct six additional greenhouses on Parcel 22 
which will house 24 growout tanks and 8 nursery tanks and expand their current settling 
ponds (see “Exhibit B”). 
 
WATER NEEDS AND SOURCE OF WATER: 
 
Water will be sourced from salt-water wells already in place on Parcel 22, as well as a 
new salt-water well which was previously approved by the Board in March 2019 to be 
constructed on the adjacent Field 408.  
 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: 
 
The proposed construction will allow the Licensee to expand upon their current 
production of brood stock and allow for greater production efficiency. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The proposed construction represents an expansion of current operations with no 
change in use.  
 
 
 
 

 
1 brood stock: a small population of any animal maintained as a source of population replacement 
or for the establishment of new populations (as of game birds) in suitable habitats (Merriam-
Webster.com Dictionary, s.v. “brood stock,” accessed March 8, 2022, https://www.merriam-
webster.com/dictionary/brood%20stock.) 

024



Request for Approval for Sunrise Capital, Inc. Under Lease Agreement No. S-5367 to Construct Greenhouses 
and Settling Ponds in Kekaha, Kauai, Tax Map Keys (4) 1-2-002:022 
March 16, 2022 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the foregoing, staff recommends that the Board approve the request to construct six 
additional greenhouses on Parcel 22, and expand their current settling ponds, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

1. Licensee shall obtain all appropriate federal, state, and local permits prior to the start of 
construction. 

 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      James J. Nakatani 
      Executive Director 
 
 
  

025

https://stateofhawaii.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA7Igz8-dvJSXVuBquqf1up05Rj26NKaTI


Request for Approval for Sunrise Capital, Inc. Under Lease Agreement No. S-5367 to Construct Greenhouses 
and Settling Ponds in Kekaha, Kauai, Tax Map Keys (4) 1-2-002:022 
March 16, 2022 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
  

026



Request for Approval for Sunrise Capital, Inc. Under Lease Agreement No. S-5367 to Construct Greenhouses 
and Settling Ponds in Kekaha, Kauai, Tax Map Keys (4) 1-2-002:022 
March 16, 2022 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sunrise Capital, Inc. Proposal 
[see following pages] 

027



Sunrise Capital, Inc. 
 P.O. Box 1282 ~ Kekaha, Kauai, HI 96752 ~ (808) 338-0331 office ~ (808) 338-0332 fax 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sunrise Capital Inc.  
Multiplication Center for 
production – Commercial 
Broodstock Production 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date     : 6th December 2021 
Author : Grant Kunishima 

 

  SUNRISE CAPITAL INC. 

028



Sunrise Capital, Inc. 
 P.O. Box 1282 ~ Kekaha, Kauai, HI 96752 ~ (808) 338-0331 office ~ (808) 338-0332 fax 

 

Kona Bay Hawaii - Hatchery 
 

Background 
Broodstock production has been grown in open pond systems at the hatchery and farm 
facilities.  This environment is good for growing large amounts of shrimp but not ideal for 
broodstock multiplication for sale.  Broodstock quality and efficiency of labor and 
workload is not being able to keep to a high standard. 
Current issues: 

 Broodstock ponds are grown at 28pcs/m2 which is very low density and shrimp can grow 
very fast and become too large for shipping at what we are considering maturity age of 
26 weeks old.   Our target shipping size of broodstock is 35 to 45g which happens to our 
broodstock at 18 to 20 weeks old. 

 Broodstock ponds are open to the environment which makes it difficult to manage 
environmental influences like vibrio, bird predation, temperature, and freshwater/salinity 
fluctuations. 

 Broodstock ponds are large at 4,000m2 each and stocking 115,000 shrimp per 
production cycle.  We cannot use high protein broodstock conditioning diet due to cost 
of feeding 115,000 shrimp per pond.  Our broodstock in turn are not given the best 
quality feeds we would like to give. 

 Catching and sorting shrimp pond side is very stress full for the shrimp using a sein and 
throw nets to catch shrimp and sort them in holding tanks.  We also need a lot of 
manpower to move these catch systems from pond to pond as we go through ponds for 
harvesting every two weeks. 

 Manpower to maintain, feed, catch/sort broodstock from ponds is on a large scale.  With 
having to have 2 staff flush 1 or 2 ponds a day after catching broodstock in the morning 
or planning around a packing schedule limits our manpower.  It also takes 5 staff to 
harvest and sort shrimp for ½ of a shipment per day.  We have between 14 to 18 brood 
ponds stocked and having to maintain daily and weekly at any given time.   

Proposal 
We will construct 1 nursery greenhouse that will be 30’ x  60’ and install 8 nursery tanks 
12’ in diameter.  This will be in the position of existing outdoor tanks that are not being 
utilized.  We will also be constructing 6 greenhouses that are 35’ x 140’.  Each 
greenhouse will have 4 individual tanks that are 30’ in diameter.   

029



Sunrise Capital, Inc. 
 P.O. Box 1282 ~ Kekaha, Kauai, HI 96752 ~ (808) 338-0331 office ~ (808) 338-0332 fax 

 

 
 

BEFORE CONSTRUCTION 

Proposal 

030



Sunrise Capital, Inc. 
 P.O. Box 1282 ~ Kekaha, Kauai, HI 96752 ~ (808) 338-0331 office ~ (808) 338-0332 fax 

 

 
 
These added tanks will consist of  
8 nursery tanks – 10m2 each 
24 growout tanks – 60m2 each 
We will be able to grow 10,000 broodstock a month that will be isolated from any 
sources of contamination from being grown outdoors and in large ponds.  We will be able 
to manage growth, water quality and also feed the right diet to our broodstock in a 
controlled and efficient manner.  We will also be selecting the top 25% for brood sales 
moving through 3 different phases.  This in turn will allow us to produce 120,000 
broodstock a year in a controlled and managed area. 
We will also be expanding our settling pond system to the north east of our property 
which can settling our solids and percolate back into the ground water system.  At the 
event of overflowing, we the ability to utilize existing ponds for more settle mentation 
and an opportunity to filter and recirculate the water use. 
 
Item     Cost (USD) 
Greenhouse quote (Ajar)  $140,000 
Construction and groundwork $60,000 
Tank quote 30’ tanks   $437,263.40 
Nursery tank quote 12’ tanks x 8 $32,000 
Electrical est. (Lord’s)   $10,000 
Hardware     $20,000 
Plumbing and construction  $30,000 
Broodstock packing facility   $20,000 
TOTAL     $750,000 

Timing 
Greenhouse purchases we estimate 2 to 3 months until delivery.  We will be able to start 
on groundwork and plumbing prior to building each greenhouse.  We will also be able to 
start the settling pond construction and ensure we are able to cover all bodies of water 
to stop birds and fish from finding their way to settling ponds.  Its will be a big biosecurity 
upgrade for the facility.  We will also push the existing settling pond out to the new 
system to ensure all our water use will be manage in a bio secure safe way. 
Tank construction - Two 30’ tanks can be built in a week which would make the entire 
tank build timeline at 13 to 14 weeks which can be started while construction of the 

031



Sunrise Capital, Inc. 
 P.O. Box 1282 ~ Kekaha, Kauai, HI 96752 ~ (808) 338-0331 office ~ (808) 338-0332 fax 

greenhouses is being put up.  The liner material for thanks is on a 8 week manufacturing 
time line not including shipping. 
Hardware and plumbing can be installed as the buildings and tanks are being completed.  
Total construction timeline estimated to be 7 to 8 weeks from time of first purchasing 
greenhouses and tank liner materials. 
 
 

032



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JOSH GREEN 
Lt. Governor 

JAMES J. NAKATANI 
Executive Director 

STATE OF HAWAII 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 

Phone:  (808) 586-0186   Fax:  (808) 586-0189 

ITEM D-2 

 
March 16, 2022 

 
 
Subject: Request for Approval to Renew License Agreement No. LI-PU1809 

Issued to K & L Produce LLC for 136.6 Acres, More or Less, for Six 
Months in Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 6-5-005:002 (por) 

 
Licensee:  K & L Produce LLC 
 
Authority:  Section 163D-4(a)(5), Hawaii Revised Statutes 
 
Area:   136.6 Acres, More or Less 
 
Field No(s).:  Undesignated 
 
Tax Map Key:  (1) 6-5-005:002 
 
Land Status:  Acquired in Fee by the Agribusiness Development Corporation in 

2017. 
 
Trust Land Status:  Ceded land under Section 5(b) lands of the Hawaii Admission Act 
     Yes ___ No  X 
 

DHHL 30% entitlement lands pursuant to the Hawaii State 
Constitution?  Yes  X  No ___ 

 
Character of Use:  Agricultural 
 
Land Doc. Type:  License 
 
Term:  3 years (currently in year 3) 
  Scheduled Expiration: March 14, 2022 
 
Rental Rate:  $200 per acre per year   
  Annual Rent: $27,320 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Agribusiness Development Corporation (“ADC”) acquired 434.188 acres of real 
property located at Waialua, Oahu in 2017, which included a 136.6-acre portion of land 

033



Request for Approval to Renew License Agreement No. LI-PU1809 Issued to K & L Produce LLC for 136.6 
Acres, More or Less, for Six Months in Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 6-5-005:002 (por) 
March 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 7 
 
 
which K & L Produce LLC had been farming under a license from Dole Food Company 
(“Dole) since 2010. Mr. Kevi Lovan and his family own and operate K & L Produce LLC, a 
Hawaii domestic limited liability company, which currently grows and harvests banana, 
eggplant, okra, cucumber, bitter melon, pumpkin, cherry tomatoes, long beans, squash, 
wing beans, and sundry other crops.  
 
Following the purchase of the property from Dole, ADC offered the K & L Produce LLC 
(“Licensee”) the right of first refusal, after which ADC issued License Agreement No. LI-
PU1809 (“License”) for 136.6 acres, more or less, (“Premises”) effective March 15, 2019 
(“Exhibit A”) for a three-year term in order to give the Licensee the opportunity to develop 
a conservation plan and clean up the property. Prior to issuance of the License, ADC staff 
noticed numerous loose dogs, abandoned vehicles, and unpermitted structures 
throughout the property.  However, the overall condition of the premises was fair, and a 
majority of the subject area was in production.  
 
On September 2, 2021, Licensee was given notice that ADC did not have a current copy 
of a certificate of insurance for their policy of commercial general liability insurance. On 
October 20, 2021, staff conducted an inspection of the premises and noted significant 
deficiencies including open pesticide containers, no conservation plan, unapproved 
structures, animals and un-permitted livestock, general unkempt and unsanitary 
conditions, and abandoned vehicles on the premises. A “Notice of Violation & Demand for 
Remediation” was sent on October 25, 2021 giving the Licensee 30 days to remediate the 
violations, which deadline was November 24, 2021. 
 
On November 29, 2021, staff conducted a follow up inspection of the Premises and found 
that while some progress had been made, such as procuring the required insurance and 
the removal of some vehicles, pesticide containers remained, a soil conservation plan had 
not been finalized, at least one unapproved toilet facility remained, some abandoned 
vehicles remained, and excessive rubbish was still strewn about the Premises. 
 
Additionally, on November 29, 2021, an inspector from the Hawaii Department of 
Agriculture’s Pesticide Branch conducted an inspection and subsequently issued a 
“Warning Notice” (“Exhibit B”) for violations of the Hawaii Pesticide Law as set forth in 
Chapter 149A, HRS, and the Federal Worker Protection Standards. Subsequently, on 
February 3, 2022, the Department of the Attorney General sent a “Notice of Default and 
Demand for Remediation” to the Licensee’s address on file and by email (“Exhibit C”)1 
 
On February 25, 2022, ADC received a request from Licensee to renew the License for 
one additional year to provide them with sufficient time to vacate the Premises (“Exhibit 
D”). 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Licensee requests that the License be renewed for one additional year in order to 
provide the Licensee with time to vacate, as well as to harvest current crops. 

 
1 The certified mailing dated February 3, 2022 was not successfully delivered. Staff hand-delivered 
the letter to the address on file for the Licensee on March 10, 2022.  

034



Request for Approval to Renew License Agreement No. LI-PU1809 Issued to K & L Produce LLC for 136.6 
Acres, More or Less, for Six Months in Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 6-5-005:002 (por) 
March 16, 2022 
Page 3 of 7 
 
 
CONSERVATION PLAN: 
 
Licensee has not developed an approved conservation plan within the term of the 
License. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
While the Licensee has demonstrated some progress in addressing the concerns of the 
Notice of Violation, it was not sufficient to forestall default action. Both staff and Licensee 
believe it is appropriate for the Licensee to vacate. However, in light of what appear to 
be sublicensed tenants on the Premises, staff believes it is appropriate to renew the 
License for a term not to exceed six months from the date of the earlier expiration of the 
License.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the foregoing, staff recommends that the Board approve the renewal of the License 
for a term not to exceed six months from the date of the prior expiration, subject to the following 
conditions to be memorialized in the renewal license: 
 

1. Renewal license shall terminate effective September 14, 2022 (the “Termination Date”); 
and 
 

2. Licensee shall fully vacate from the Premises by the Termination Date; and 
 

3. Licensee shall remediate all remaining concerns as documented in the “Notice of Default 
and Demand for Remediation” by the Termination Date; and 
 

4. Licensee shall remove and properly dispose of all un-permitted structures on the 
Premises by the Termination Date. 

 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      James J. Nakatani 
      Executive Director 
 
 
  

035

https://stateofhawaii.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA7Igz8-dvJSXVuBquqf1up05Rj26NKaTI


Request for Approval to Renew License Agreement No. LI-PU1809 Issued to K & L Produce LLC for 136.6 
Acres, More or Less, for Six Months in Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 6-5-005:002 (por) 
March 16, 2022 
Page 4 of 7 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
  

036



Request for Approval to Renew License Agreement No. LI-PU1809 Issued to K & L Produce LLC for 136.6 
Acres, More or Less, for Six Months in Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 6-5-005:002 (por) 
March 16, 2022 
Page 5 of 7 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Warning Notice” from Hawaii Department of Agriculture 
[see following pages] 

 
 

  

037



038



039



040



041



042



043



044



Request for Approval to Renew License Agreement No. LI-PU1809 Issued to K & L Produce LLC for 136.6 
Acres, More or Less, for Six Months in Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 6-5-005:002 (por) 
March 16, 2022 
Page 6 of 7 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Notice of Default and Demand for Remediation” 
[see following pages] 

 
  

045



046



047



048



049



050



051



052



053



054



055



056



057



058



059



060



061



062



063



064



065



066



067



068



069



070



071



072



073



074



075



076



077



078



079



080



081



082



083



084



085



086



087



088



089



090



091



092



093



094



095



096



097



098



099



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



Request for Approval to Renew License Agreement No. LI-PU1809 Issued to K & L Produce LLC for 136.6 
Acres, More or Less, for Six Months in Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 6-5-005:002 (por) 
March 16, 2022 
Page 7 of 7 
 
 

EXHIBIT D 
 

 
 

166



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JOSH GREEN 
Lt. Governor 

JAMES J. NAKATANI 
Executive Director 

STATE OF HAWAII 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 

Phone:  (808) 586-0186   Fax:  (808) 586-0189 

ITEM D-3 

 
March 16, 2022 

 
 
 
Subject: Request for Approval-in-Concept to Issue a Lease or License to 

Kekaha Agriculture Association for up to 400 Acres, More or Less, 
for an Open Floodable Space in Kekaha, Kauai, Tax Map Key (4) 
1-2-002:001 (por) 

 
Applicant:  Kekaha Agriculture Association 
 
Authority:  Section 163D-4(a)(5), Hawaii Revised Statutes 
 
Area:   Up to 405 acres, more or less 
 
Field No(s).:  424, 325, 425, 326, 327 
 
Tax Map Key:  (4) 1-2-002:001 
 
Land Status:  Set aside by the Governor’s Executive Order No. 4007 to the 

Agribusiness Development Corporation for Agricultural and 
Related Purposes 

 
Trust Land Status:  Ceded land under Section 5(b) lands of the Hawaii Admission Act 
     Yes  X  No ___ 
 

DHHL 30% entitlement lands pursuant to the Hawaii State 
Constitution?  Yes  X  No ___ 

 
Character of Use:  Open Floodable Space, Water Management 
 
Land Doc. Type:  Lease or License 
 
Term:  Up to 35 Years, option to extend for additional 30 years 
 
Rental Rate:  $0   
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On January 26, 2022, Kekaha Agriculture Association (“KAA”) made a presentation to 
the Board of the Agribusiness Development Corporation regarding a proposal for open 

167



Request for Approval-in-Concept to Issue a Lease or License to Kekaha Agriculture Association for up to 400 
Acres, More or Less, for an Open Floodable Space in Kekaha, Kauai, Tax Map Key (4) 1-2-002:001 (por) 
March 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 
floodable space on the Mana Plain which would reconfigure portions of the ditch system, 
help manage storm runoff and mitigate flooding, and collect and settle sediment before it 
reaches the ocean. 
 
KAA was one of twenty organizations that was selected to submit a full proposal to the 
United States Department of Defense (“DoD”) as part of their 2022 Readiness and 
Environmental Protection Integration (REPI) Program Challenge. KAA is seeking $6.5 
million to fund the creation of approximately 400 acres of open floodable space to better 
handle storm runoff, reconfigure the portions of the ditch system, and to upgrade the 
pumps (see “Exhibit A”). 
 
LAND REQUEST: 
 
For the purpose of providing a letter of intent as part of their application for the REPI 
grant, KAA requests approval-in-concept for a lease or license for a term not to exceed 
65 years for up to 400 acres of land in and around the Kawaiele and Nohili pumps 
stations for the development of open floodable space (see “Exhibit B”). 
 
WATER NEEDS AND SOURCE OF WATER: 
 
For the purpose of this project, there are no specific water needs. The project is intended 
to allow for better management of storm runoff and to provide open floodable space for 
the same.  
 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: 
 
Should the project application be awarded, the project would be conducted in two 
phases. Phase I would be the design and permitting phase, during which an 
environmental assessment process would be conducted. Phase II would be the 
construction phase.  
 
CHAPTER 343, HRS 
 
This request would trigger a Chapter 343, HRS requirement to conduct an environmental 
assessment as part of the design/permitting phase of the project. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Staff is supportive of this project due in large part to opportunity it provides for runoff 
sediment to settle before reaching the ocean. ADC has certain obligations under the 
Clean Water Act Settlement Agreement and believes that this project will aid in meeting 
some of those obligations. This project also provides an opportunity to develop capacity 
to begin to address the threat of sea level rise to the Mana Plain. 
 
 

168



Request for Approval-in-Concept to Issue a Lease or License to Kekaha Agriculture Association for up to 400 
Acres, More or Less, for an Open Floodable Space in Kekaha, Kauai, Tax Map Key (4) 1-2-002:001 (por) 
March 16, 2022 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the foregoing, staff recommends that the for the purpose of providing a letter of 
intent, the Board approve-in-concept the land request so noted above, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. If KAA’s application to the REPI Program Challenge is denied, the approval-in-concept 
will be automatically voided; and 
 

2. Any lease or license issued pursuant to this project shall be subject to the approval of 
the Board. 

 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      James J. Nakatani 
      Executive Director 
 
 
  

169

https://stateofhawaii.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA7Igz8-dvJSXVuBquqf1up05Rj26NKaTI


Request for Approval-in-Concept to Issue a Lease or License to Kekaha Agriculture Association for up to 400 
Acres, More or Less, for an Open Floodable Space in Kekaha, Kauai, Tax Map Key (4) 1-2-002:001 (por) 
March 16, 2022 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Map 
[see following page] 

  

170



 

171



Request for Approval-in-Concept to Issue a Lease or License to Kekaha Agriculture Association for up to 400 
Acres, More or Less, for an Open Floodable Space in Kekaha, Kauai, Tax Map Key (4) 1-2-002:001 (por) 
March 16, 2022 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Kekaha Agriculture Association Presentation to the Board on January 26, 2022 
[see following pages] 

172



A
d

ap
ti

o
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

to
 S

ea
 L

ev
el

 R
is

e:
 

M
ān

ā 
P

la
in

, K
au

a‘
I

K
e

ka
h

a 
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
re

 A
ss

o
ci

at
io

n

❑
M

an
ag

es
~7

,0
0

0
 a

cr
es

 o
f 

p
u

b
lic

ly
 o

w
n

ed
 a

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l l
an

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
M

ān
ā 

P
la

in

❑
Ex

p
ec

ts
tr

an
si

e
n

t 
fl

o
o

d
in

g 
ca

u
se

d
 b

y 
ra

in
fa

ll 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 a
s 

se
a 

le
ve

l r
is

es •B
y 

2
0

4
0

 (
o

r 
so

o
n

er
) 

th
is

 w
ill

 d
im

in
is

h
 t

h
e 

ab
ili

ty
 t

h
e 

ag
ri

cu
lt

u
ra

l d
ra

in
ag

e 
d

it
ch

 s
ys

te
m

 h
as

 t
o

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 s

to
rm

 
ru

n
o

ff
 d

ir
ec

tl
y 

in
to

 t
h

e 
O

ce
an

 u
n

d
er

 t
h

e 
in

fl
u

en
ce

 o
f 

gr
av

it
y

173



2
0

22
 R

ea
d

in
es

s 
an

d
 E

nv
ir

o
n

m
en

ta
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n
 

In
te

gr
at

io
n

 (
R

EP
I)

 P
ro

gr
am

 C
h

al
le

n
ge

A
 D

o
D

 n
at

io
n

al
 c

o
m

p
et

it
iv

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

❑
K

A
A

 is
 o

n
e 

o
f 

2
0

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
s 

th
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 s

el
ec

te
d

 t
o

 s
u

b
m

it
 a

 
fu

ll 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l

❑
Se

ek
in

g
$

6
.5

M
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g 

to
 c

re
at

e 
~2

0
0

 a
cr

es
 o

f 
o

p
e

n
 f

lo
o

d
ab

le
 

sp
ac

e 
to

 b
et

te
r 

h
an

d
le

 s
to

rm
 r

u
n

o
ff

, b
y 

re
co

n
fi

gu
ri

n
g 

d
it

ch
 s

ys
te

m
 

an
d

 u
p

gr
ad

in
g 

p
u

m
p

s 

❑
R

eq
u

ir
es

ex
te

n
d

in
g 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
ag

re
e

m
en

t 
w

it
h

 D
o

D
 t

o
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 
p

re
se

n
t 

co
n

d
it

io
n

 o
f 

 s
u

b
je

ct
 p

ar
ce

l (
~2

0
0

 a
cr

es
) 

–
Fi

e
ld

 4
2

5
 a

n
d

 
vi

ci
n

it
y

174



2
0

22
 R

ea
d

in
es

s 
an

d
 E

nv
ir

o
n

m
en

ta
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n
 

In
te

gr
at

io
n

 (
R

EP
I)

 P
ro

gr
am

 C
h

al
le

n
ge

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 o
f 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 p
ro

je
ct

❑
In

cr
e

as
e

re
si

lie
n

ce
 o

f 
ag

ri
cu

lt
u

ra
l l

an
d

 o
n

 t
h

e 
M

ān
ā 

P
la

in
 t

o
 s

ea
 le

ve
l r

is
e

❑
R

e
al

ig
n

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
d

it
ch

 s
ys

te
m

 t
o

 li
m

it
 a

n
d

 b
et

te
r 

co
n

tr
o

l t
h

e 
vo

lu
m

e 
an

d
 

q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
fl

o
o

d
w

at
er

 t
h

at
 is

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
d

 d
ir

ec
tl

y 
in

to
 t

h
e 

o
ce

an

❑
M

ai
n

ta
in

 a
n

d
 im

p
ro

ve
 (

b
u

t 
n

o
t

in
cr

ea
se

) 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

ar
ea

 o
f 

fl
o

o
d

 p
ro

n
e 

la
n

d
 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
d

es
 h

ab
it

at
 fo

r 
en

d
an

ge
re

d
 H

aw
ai

ia
n

 w
at

er
b

ir
d

s 
–

n
o

t
a 

m
an

ag
ed

 
w

et
la

n
d

, s
to

re
d

 f
lo

o
d

w
at

er
 w

ill
 b

e 
p

u
m

p
ed

 o
u

t 
o

ve
r 

a 
p

er
io

d
 o

f 
ti

m
e

❑
M

ai
n

ta
in

 a
n

d
 im

p
ro

ve
 in

st
al

la
ti

o
n

 r
es

ili
en

ce
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e 
N

av
y’

s 
Pa

ci
fi

c 
M

is
si

le
 R

an
ge

 F
ac

ili
ty

175



❑ ❑ ❑

176



❑ ❑ ❑

177



❑ ❑ ❑

•

❑

• • •

178



❑ ❑

• •

❑ ❑

•

179



M
ah

al
o

180



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JOSH GREEN 
Lt. Governor 

JAMES J. NAKATANI 
Executive Director 

STATE OF HAWAII 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 

Phone:  (808) 586-0186   Fax:  (808) 586-0189 

ITEM D-4 

March 16, 2022 
 
Subject: Request for reconsideration of the January 31, 2018 Board 

authorization for the Kekaha Agriculture Association (KAA) to 
pursue a declaratory order to designate a portion of the 
Agribusiness Development Corporation’s (ADC) Kekaha lands as 
Important Agricultural Lands in accordance with Chapter 205, 
Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), and to certify ADC’s authorization 
as the landowner of lands set aside for control and management of 
ADC via Executive Order No. 4007, rather than the Department of 
Land and Natural Resources 

 
Authority:  Sections 163D-4(a)(18), 171-2(11), and 171-11, HRS 
 
Location:  Kekaha, Island of Kauai, Hawaii 
 
Land Area:  Portions of the Mānā plain lands, approximately 12,123 acres 
 
Tax Map Key:  (4) 1-2-02-01 
 
Land Status:  Encumbered by Governor’s Executive Order No. 4007 to ADC for 

the public purpose of Agriculture and related purposes. 
 
Trust Land Status:  Ceded land under Section 5(b) lands of the Hawaii Admission Act 
     Yes  X    No ___ 
 

DHHL 30% entitlement lands pursuant to the Hawaii State 
Constitution?  Yes  X   No ___ 

 
Character of Use:  Agricultural 
 
Land Doc. Type:  N/A 
 
Term:  N/A 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In 2003, ADC acquired approximately 12,860.642 gross acres of land in Kekaha, Waimea, 
Kauai by way of Executive Order No. 4007, which set aside public land for the following 
public purposes: 
 

 FOR AGRICULTRUAL AND RELATED PURPOSES, to be under the 

181



Request for reconsideration of the January 31, 2018 Board authorization for the Kekaha Agriculture 
Association (KAA) to pursue a declaratory order to designate a portion of the Agribusiness Development 
Corporation’s (ADC) Kekaha lands as Important Agricultural Lands in accordance with Chapter 205, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes (HRS), and to certify ADC’s authorization as the landowner of lands set aside for control and 
management of ADC via Executive Order No. 4007, rather than the Department of Land and Natural 
Resources 
 
March 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 9 
 
 

control and management of the Agribusiness Development Corporation, a public 
body corporate and politic and an instrumentality and agency of the State of 
Hawaii, being that parcel of land situate at Kekaha, Waimea, Kauai, Hawaii, 
identified as “Portion of the Government (Crown) Land of Waimea,” containing a 
gross area of 12,860.642 acres and a net area of 12,592.133 acres . . . .  
 
 SUBJECT, HOWEVER, to the condition that upon cancellation of this 
executive order or in the event of non-use or abandonment of the premises or any 
portion thereof for a continuous period of one (1) year, or for any reason 
whatsoever, the Agribusiness Development Corporation shall, within a reasonable 
time, restore the premises to a condition satisfactory and acceptable to the 
Department of Land and Natural Resources, State of Hawaii. 
 
 SUBJECT, FURTHER, to disapproval by the Legislature by two-thirds vote 
of either the Senate or the House of Representatives or by majority vote of both, 
in any regular or special session next following the date of this Executive Order. 

 
See Exhibit “A”. 
 
In 2005, the Hawai‘i State Legislature enacted Part III of the Land Use Commission act, 
codified as sections 205-41 to 205-52, HRS, entitled “Important Agricultural Lands” for the 
stated purposes of conserving and protecting agricultural lands, promoting diversified 
agriculture, increasing agricultural self-sufficiency, and assuring the availability of 
agriculturally suitable lands.  Section 205-41, HRS.   
 
There are two ways to achieve important agricultural land designation:  1) by identification 
of public lands, and designation of such public lands, by the department of agriculture 
(HDOA) and the department of land and natural resources (DLNR) as important 
agricultural lands, before December 31, 2009 pursuant to section 205-44.5, HRS; or 2) by 
a farmer or landowner petition to the Land Use Commission pursuant to section 205-45, 
HRS.  HDOA and DLNR, to date, have not identified any lands in Kekaha as important 
agricultural lands pursuant to section 205-44.5, HRS. 
 
The benefits to be obtained from important agricultural land designation include protecting 
land from being used for non-agricultural purposes; allows the landowner to develop farm 
dwellings and employee housing; and provides income tax incentives to promote 
economic sustainability of agricultural enterprises.       
 
KAA is an agricultural cooperative formed under chapter 421, HRS.  The members of KAA 
are agricultural producers.  “Agricultural products” include floricultural, horticultural, 
viticultural, forestry, nut, coffee, dairy, livestock, poultry, bee, farm or plantation products, 
and fish and aquacultural commodities.  Section 421-1, HRS.  KAA members have long- 
term agricultural land licenses/leases with ADC, and have historically expended millions 
of dollars for Kekaha agricultural infrastructure operation and maintenance.     

182



Request for reconsideration of the January 31, 2018 Board authorization for the Kekaha Agriculture 
Association (KAA) to pursue a declaratory order to designate a portion of the Agribusiness Development 
Corporation’s (ADC) Kekaha lands as Important Agricultural Lands in accordance with Chapter 205, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes (HRS), and to certify ADC’s authorization as the landowner of lands set aside for control and 
management of ADC via Executive Order No. 4007, rather than the Department of Land and Natural 
Resources 
 
March 16, 2022 
Page 3 of 9 
 
 
 
In 2018, KAA proposed to voluntarily petition the Land Use Commission (LUC) for a 
declaratory order pursuant to section 205-45, HRS, designating portions of the Mānā plain 
lands as important agricultural lands.  Prior to submitting the petition, KAA asked the ADC 
Board to authorize KAA, as farmers, to seek important agricultural land designation for 
ADC lands within the Mānā plain.  KAA sought ADC’s approval, as the landowner, to 
comply with section 15-15-121(b)(1), Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR), which requires 
authorization from the applicable landowner.   
 
The term “landowner” is not defined in chapter 205, HRS, but is defined in the Land Use 
Commission Rules as “a person or party with a fee simple interest in the land.”  Section 
15-15-03, HAR.  In an abundance of caution, ADC approached DLNR by way of letter 
dated January 22, 2018, and broached the subject of fee simple ownership of lands set 
aside to ADC by executive order.  The letter asked for DLNR’s assistance in working 
towards designating the ADC lands as important agricultural lands through KAA’s petition.  
See Exhibit “B”.    
 
The request to authorize KAA’s petition was presented to the ADC Board on January 31, 
2018.  DLNR had not responded to ADC’s letter by the January 31, 2018 ADC Board 
meeting.  Following KAA’s presentation, the Board authorized KAA to submit a petition to 
the LUC, conditioned upon DLNR’s approval.  See Exhibit “C”.     
 
KAA filed a petition with the Land Use Commission on December 2, 2021.  A hearing was 
held on December 23, 2021.  At the hearing, the LUC raised several issues that needed 
clarification before the petition could proceed.  The LUC continued the hearing to a date 
after April 2022 to address the issues.  By way of letter dated February 2, 2022, the LUC 
asked the parties to brief specifically identified issues by March 30, 2022.  See Exhibit “D”.  
One of the questions raised by the LUC was who should represent the landowner, ADC 
or DLNR? 
 
After extensive research, it would appear that ADC, by virtue of the executive order, stands 
in the shoes of the State for purposes of fee simple ownership. 
 
REQUEST: 
 
That the ADC Board, as the de facto landowner of lands set aside for the public purpose 
of agricultural and related purposes, reauthorize and support KAA’s petition for 
declaratory order to designate approximately 12,123 acres of ADC lands as important 
agricultural lands.    
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Based on the plain language of Executive Order No. 4007, “the Governor of the State of 
Hawaii,” by virtue of the authority granted in Section 171-11, HRS, “and every other 

183



Request for reconsideration of the January 31, 2018 Board authorization for the Kekaha Agriculture 
Association (KAA) to pursue a declaratory order to designate a portion of the Agribusiness Development 
Corporation’s (ADC) Kekaha lands as Important Agricultural Lands in accordance with Chapter 205, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes (HRS), and to certify ADC’s authorization as the landowner of lands set aside for control and 
management of ADC via Executive Order No. 4007, rather than the Department of Land and Natural 
Resources 
 
March 16, 2022 
Page 4 of 9 
 
 
authority me hereunto enabling, do hereby order that the public land hereinafter 
described be, and the same is, hereby set aside for the following public purposes:  FOR 
AGRICULTURAL AND RELATED PURPOSES[.]”  Executive Order No. 4007 goes on to 
allow for disapproval of the executive order “by the Legislature by two-thirds vote of 
either the Senate or the House of Representatives or by majority vote of both, in any 
regular or special session next following the date of this Executive Order.”    
 
Section 171-11, HRS, provides the “governor may, with the prior approval of the board of 
land and natural resources, set aside public lands to any department or agency of the 
State[.]”  (Emphasis added.)  Accordingly, based on HRS section 171-11, land set aside 
for a public purpose by way of executive order to ADC, has already received the approval 
of the Board of Land and Natural Resources (BLNR), and the Legislature.   
 
Section 171-11, HRS, further provides that lands so set aside for a public purpose, “shall 
be managed by the department, agency, city and county, county, or other political 
subdivisions of the State having jurisdiction thereof, unless otherwise provided by law.”  
(Emphasis added.) Pursuant to section 171-11, HRS, and Executive Order No. 4007, ADC 
is the agency given jurisdiction over the Kekaha lands.   
 
However, lands given the status of “public lands” under chapter 171, HRS, do not 
include, “Lands that are set aside by the governor to the agribusiness development 
corporation, lands leased to the agribusiness development corporation by any 
department or agency of the State, or lands to which the agribusiness development 
corporation in its corporate capacity holds title[.]”  Section 171-2(11), HRS.   
 
While DLNR “shall manage, administer, and exercise control over public lands” pursuant 
to section 171-3(a), HRS, ADC was given these same powers through Executive Order 
No. 4007 and through the exemption of public land status to those lands set aside to 
ADC pursuant to section 171-2(11), HRS.  DLNR and ADC are on equal footing in 
regards to matters involving lands subject to an executive order.   
 
Executive Order No. 4007 returns the Kekaha lands to public land status, subject to 
certain prior conditions.  Those conditions are cancellation of the executive order; or in 
the event of non-use or abandonment of the premises or any portion thereof for a 
continuous one year period; or for any reason whatsoever; and upon restoration of the 
premises to a condition satisfactory and acceptable to DLNR.   Once any of these 
conditions are met, the lands again become subject to section 171-11, HRS, which 
states: 
 

Whenever lands set aside for a public purpose to the various departments 
and agencies of the State, or to any city and county, county, or other 
political subdivisions of the State, or to the United States, are not being 
utilized or required for the public purpose stated, the order setting aside 

184



Request for reconsideration of the January 31, 2018 Board authorization for the Kekaha Agriculture 
Association (KAA) to pursue a declaratory order to designate a portion of the Agribusiness Development 
Corporation’s (ADC) Kekaha lands as Important Agricultural Lands in accordance with Chapter 205, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes (HRS), and to certify ADC’s authorization as the landowner of lands set aside for control and 
management of ADC via Executive Order No. 4007, rather than the Department of Land and Natural 
Resources 
 
March 16, 2022 
Page 5 of 9 
 
 

the lands shall be withdrawn and the lands shall be returned to the 
department [of land and natural resources].  

 
Until such time as the conditions establishing the right to reversion are met, the lands 
subject to executive order are under ADC jurisdiction.  Such jurisdiction was given to ADC 
by the Governor with the approval of BLNR and the Hawaii legislature. 
  
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Accordingly, it is recommended that this Board: 
 

1) Reauthorize the Kekaha Agriculture Association to pursue a declaratory order to 
designate 12,123 acres of Agribusiness Development Corporation’s Kekaha lands 
as Important Agricultural Lands in accordance with Chapter 205, HRS; 
 

2) Consent or certify, on behalf of the State of Hawai‘i as the fee simple landowner  
authorized by Executive Order No. 4007, ADC’s approval and support of KAA’s 
Petition for Declaratory Order to Designate Important Agricultural Lands under 
Docket No. DR 21-76; and 

 
3) Authorize the ADC staff to assist and cooperate with KAA as necessary to secure 

the designation of the Mānā plain lands as important agricultural lands. 
 
 
      Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
      James J. Nakatani 
      Executive Director 
 
   
  

185

https://stateofhawaii.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA7Igz8-dvJSXVuBquqf1up05Rj26NKaTI


Request for reconsideration of the January 31, 2018 Board authorization for the Kekaha Agriculture 
Association (KAA) to pursue a declaratory order to designate a portion of the Agribusiness Development 
Corporation’s (ADC) Kekaha lands as Important Agricultural Lands in accordance with Chapter 205, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes (HRS), and to certify ADC’s authorization as the landowner of lands set aside for control and 
management of ADC via Executive Order No. 4007, rather than the Department of Land and Natural 
Resources 
 
March 16, 2022 
Page 6 of 9 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Governor’s Executive Order No. 4007 
 

[see following pages] 
 

  

186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



Request for reconsideration of the January 31, 2018 Board authorization for the Kekaha Agriculture 
Association (KAA) to pursue a declaratory order to designate a portion of the Agribusiness Development 
Corporation’s (ADC) Kekaha lands as Important Agricultural Lands in accordance with Chapter 205, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes (HRS), and to certify ADC’s authorization as the landowner of lands set aside for control and 
management of ADC via Executive Order No. 4007, rather than the Department of Land and Natural 
Resources 
 
March 16, 2022 
Page 7 of 9 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADC Letter to DLNR Chairperson Suzanne Case Regarding Designation of Kekaha 
Lands as Important Agricultural Lands by Petition 

 
[see following page] 

 
  

212



213



Request for reconsideration of the January 31, 2018 Board authorization for the Kekaha Agriculture 
Association (KAA) to pursue a declaratory order to designate a portion of the Agribusiness Development 
Corporation’s (ADC) Kekaha lands as Important Agricultural Lands in accordance with Chapter 205, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes (HRS), and to certify ADC’s authorization as the landowner of lands set aside for control and 
management of ADC via Executive Order No. 4007, rather than the Department of Land and Natural 
Resources 
 
March 16, 2022 
Page 8 of 9 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Minutes of ADC Board of Directors Meeting on January 31, 2018 
 

[see highlighted on following pages] 
 

  

214



215



216



217



218



219



Approved at  
February 28, 2018 meeting 

 

1 
 

AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Director meeting for January 31, 2018 
Department of Agriculture Plant Quarantine Conference Room 
1849 Auiki Street, Honolulu, Hawaii 96819 
 
Members: 
 

Letitia Uyehara  Yukio Kitagawa 
Lloyd Haraguchi  Douglas Schenk 
Leilyn Koev   Denise Albano 
Sandra Klutke   Margarita Hopkins 
Jeffrey Pearson, DLNR 
 

Absent: 
 
 Scott Enright, DOA  Robbie Melton, DBEDT 
. 
Guests:   
 
 Cindy Matsuki, HTDC Joshua Uyehara, KAA 
 Tina Deitschman, Senator Dela Cruz’s office 
 Teresa Dawson, Environment Hawaii 
 
Staff:     Counsel: 
 
 James Nakatani  Andrew Goff 
 Myra Kaichi 
 Lynn Owan 
 Ken Nakamoto 
 Todd Low 

Cindy Doi 
 
A. Call to order. 
 
Chairperson Uyehara called the meeting to order at 9:05 am. 
 
B. Approval of Minutes from the December 20, 2017. 
 
Mr. Schenk moved to approve the minutes; Ms. Hopkins seconded the motion; motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
C. Request to Re-Issue a Revocable Permit to Andros Engineering Corporation for a 
Covered Parking Area in Whitmore, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-1-02-04 (por). 
 
Mr. Nakamoto made the presentation to re-issue a RP to Andros Engineering Corporation 
for a covered parking which is in the 257 parcel and in the master plan area in Whitmore.  

220



Approved at  
February 28, 2018 meeting 

 

2 
 

Andros has been renting a parking shed since 2016.  Permittee is a world supplier of 
specialized agricultural equipment based in California and has been operating in Hawaii 
since 2014.  Permittee has been a good tenant and rent payment has been made in a 
timely manner.  ADC plans to redevelop the area which may include the removal of the 
parking shed.  ADC proposes to allow the Permittee to continue using the land for its 
operation on a month-to-month basis until such redevelopment ensures.  The 
recommendation is to approve the reissuance of a RP to Andros Engineering Corporation 
for the parking area in Whitmore subject to the following terms and conditions:  term of 
this RP shall be on a month-to-month basis; base rent shall be $880 per month; shall pay 
its share of utilities; may apply for rent credit; and no subletting to be permitted without 
ADC’s prior approval in writing. 
 
Ms. Hopkins moved to approve the recommendation; Mr. Pearson seconded the motion. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
D. Request to Re-Issue a Revocable Permit to Davey Tree Expert Company for 
Parking Area in Whitmore, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-1-02-04 (por) and (1) 7-1-02-09 
(por). 
 
Mr. Nakamoto made the presentation to re-issue a RP to Davey Tree for parking area in 
Whitmore.  Permittee has been renting office space, a covered parking shed, and 10,000 
square feet parking area since 2016.  Permittee is a tree trimming and landscaping 
company based in Ohio.  The company is currently using the space in Whitmore to store 
equipment and vehicles.  ADC plans to redevelop the area, which include the use of the 
10,000 square feet parking area and removal of the office space and parking shed.  ADC 
proposes to allow the Permittee to continue using of land for its operation on a month-to-
month basis until such redevelopment ensures.  The recommendation is to approve the 
reissuance of a revocable permit to Davey Tree Expert Company for parking area in 
Whitmore subject to the following terms and conditions:  term of this RP shall be on a 
month-to-month basis; base rent shall be $1,634.40 per month; shall pay its share of 
utilities; and no subletting to be permitted without ADC’s prior approval in writing. 
 
Mr. Haraguchi moved to approve the recommendations; Mr. Schenk seconded the 
motion.   
 
Mr. Kitagawa asked about the office area.  Mr. Nakamoto replied WCBDO is leasing on 
a month to month basis. 
 
Ms. Hopkins asked when storing the equipment do they have restrictions.  Mr. Nakamoto 
replied yes, but no heavy equipments. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
E. Request to Re-Issue a Revocable Permit to Royal Palm Group/Construction and 
Landscaping, Inc. for Nursery Purposes, Whitmore, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-1-*02-09 
(por). 

221



Approved at  
February 28, 2018 meeting 

 

3 
 

 
Mr. Nakamoto made the presentation to re-issue a RP to Royal Palm Group/Construction 
and Landscaping for nursery purposes in Whitmore.  Royal Palm has been renting four 
acres since 2010 and was a carry over tenant when ADC acquired the 24 acre parcel.  
Currently the land is used as a plant nursery and store heavy equipment.  ADC plans to 
redevelop the area and proposes to allow the Permittee to continue to use the land for 
nursery purposes on a month to month basis until the redevelopment ensures.  The 
recommendation is to approve the reissuance of a RP to the Royal Palm Group for 4 acres 
in Whitmore, subject to the following terms and conditions:  term shall be on a month-to-
month basis; base rent shall be $1,600 per year; and no subletting to be permitted without 
ADC’s prior approval in writing.   
 
Ms. Hopkins moved to approve the recommendations; Mr. Kitagawa seconded the 
motion.   
 
Ms. Klutke asked on the rent, how long has this been in existence?  Mr. Nakamoto 
replied it is the same terms and conditions as what Dole charged.  It is flat and would like 
to take it back if needed once the plan is completed.     
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
F. Request for approval to issue a Land License to Tiansheng Lin dba Lin’s Farm for 
2 acres of Land in Kalepa, Kauai, identified as, Tax Map Key (4) 3-9-002:020, Unit 
HSPA #2, for Diversified Agriculture. 
 
Mr. Nakamoto made the presentation to issue a land license to Tiansheng Lin dba Lin’s 
Farm for 2 acres of land in Kalepa, Unit HSPA #2, for diversified agriculture.  The 
Licensee request for farm land in Kalepa to cultivate fruit trees and vegetables.  They 
operate a farm and currently cultivates a variety of fruits and vegetables.  They market at 
the weekly farmers’ market held on Kauai and is seeking more land to expand their 
business to enter larger markets.  The irrigated lands which includes Units A,B,C, and 
HSPA #1-3 has been designated for diversified agricultural use by the ADC Board in 
2014.  HSPA#2 is approximately 2 acres and is entirely useable.  The parcel abuts HSPA 
#1, Maalo Road, and an earthen irrigation ditch which can provide ample irrigation water 
to the land for diversified agriculture.  The Licensee’s plans include clearing the 
overgrown vegetation and planting fruit trees and vegetables throughout the 2 acres.  The 
Licensee is required to develop a conservation plan in cooperation with the Kauai Soil 
and Water Conservation District and submit for acceptance to the ADC.  Licensee must 
agree to practicing good agricultural practices both in the fields and in the packing area, 
and best management practices on the land.  Licensee is responsible for learning and 
implementing Good Agricultural Practices (GAP) and develop a Food Safety Plan to 
meet expectations for the Food Safety Modernization Act (FSMA) rules and audit 
requirements.  Licensee shall receive GAP certification within 12 months from issuance 
of License.  Regular inspections will be conducted to ensure this rule is enforced. 
Licensee has agreed to work with ADC staff to ensure they comply with Food Safety 
laws and regulations.  The additional 2 acres will allow the Licensee to demonstrate his 

222



Approved at  
February 28, 2018 meeting 

 

4 
 

operation can meet basic regulatory compliance which is a prerequisite for expanding his 
operation to larger markets.  The recommendation is to issue a land license to Tiansheng 
Lin dba Lin’s Farm for 2 acres in Kalepa for diversified agriculture with the following 
conditions:  License fee of $100 per acre per year or $200 per year for 2 acres; Licensee 
would be required to join the Kalepa Koalition (KK) or to pay a monthly maintenance fee 
to the KK that would support efforts in maintaining the infrastructure; shall not 
sublicense the whole or any portion of their premises without the prior written approval 
of the ADC Board; Licensee shall receive GAP certification within 12 months from 
issuance of License.   
 
Mr. Haraguchi moved to approve the recommendation; Ms. Klutke seconded the motion. 
 
Ms. Albano asked on GAP, will it be for all ADC’s licenses?  Mr. Nakamoto replied yes, 
we will be amending our terms and conditions for all licenses to include GAP because 
right now there is nothing in our license that they need to be GAP certified.     
 
Mr. Kitagawa asked if they have another farming area.  Mr. Nakamoto replied yes in the 
Kealia area on the Kapaa side which is not ADC’s.   Mr. Kitagawa asked if he only wants 
to plant 2 acres.  Mr. Nakamoto replied they would like more acres but when looking at 
his current area, it was decided that they were not ready for more acres at this time.  Ms. 
Klutke said she and Mr. Nakamoto visited his farm and he is very ambitious but he needs 
to follow food safety rules.  She thinks he will be moving from the Kealia area and will 
be leasing land from Grove Farms to grow his vegetables.  So probably sticking to his 
plan of only growing fruit trees in Kalepa.   
 
Ms. Hopkins asked how does the farmer get certified under GAP?  Mr. Nakamoto replied 
currently the DOA and we are working on that internally/administrative on how to get 
basic guidelines.  DOA has a checklist and do a pre audit GAP list that we are currently 
looking at. There are a lot of information at DOA and UH.   
 
Chair commented that with FSMA all states need to make a determination who would 
carry out the program at the state level because the enforcement will not be done by the 
federal.  In Hawaii the role would normally have gone to the Department of Health but 
they have no interest in doing it therefore the program will be taken over by DOA and are 
currently creating a component that will help the education process and help the farmers 
get GAP certified.   
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Item H was moved ahead of Item G 
 
H. Update by the Hawaii Technology Development Corporation Agricultural 
Hackathon (Agathon). 
 
Ms. Matsuki made an update of the Hackathon that occurred a few weeks ago.  The event 
was held for two weekends with 83 attendees.  There was a work project and challenges 

223



Approved at  
February 28, 2018 meeting 

 

5 
 

of the agricultural industries were presented to the participants.  The following Saturday 
they had an ag tech panel and work day.  Sunday was a demo day where they had 10 
teams pitch their solutions.  The judges choose Harvest Vision as first place which was an 
AI solution for coffee harvesting.  They will follow up with the teams to see if anyone are 
interested in the development of solutions or help with a proposal to complete their 
solutions.  If anyone is interested in looking at the results you can check 
Agathon.devpost.com which has all the team submissions.  They will be sending out 
surveys to get feedbacks.   
 
Short recess was called at 9:45. 
 
Item I was moved ahead of Item G 
 
I. Presentation by Todd Low on the Spread Techno Farm:  An Example of In Door 
Agriculture. 
 
Mr. Low made a power point presentation on the Spread Techno Farm which he, Mr. 
Nakatani and Mr. Fred Lau visited recently in Japan that represents a new prospective on 
agriculture innovation.  The sustainability philosophy is: soil, economic, environmental, 
business and technology.  He also provided a short video on the spread lettuce farm 
located in Kyoto, Japan which is a completely closed hydroponics system.   
 
G. Request to authorize the Kekaha Agriculture Association to pursue a declaratory 
order to designate a portion of Agribusiness Development Corporation’s Kekaha lands as 
Important Agricultural Lands in accordance with Chapter 205, Hawaii Revised Statutes, 
and to certify ADC’s authorization as landowner.   
 
Mr. Joshua Uyehara was present to request permission for the Kekaha Ag Association to 
petition the land commission to designate some of the ADC’s lands on the Mana plains as 
important ag lands.  Ms. Kaichi made the presentation to request to authorize the KAA to 
pursue a declaratory order to designate a portion of ADC’s Kekaha lands as Important 
Agricultural Lands (IAL) in accordance with Chapter 205, HRS, and to certify ADC’s 
authorization as landowner.  The KAA has proposed to voluntarily petition the LUC for a 
declaratory order designating portions of the ADC Mana Plains lands as IAL.  If 
successful, and assuming the tax credits are extended, such designation could result in 
tremendous benefits to the KAA, and to qualified agricultural costs incurred by 
individual tenants.  The petition will only seek IAL designation; there will be no request 
to reclassify any ADC lands.  Although the ADC manages these lands, the fee simple 
interest in and to the lands remain with the State of Hawaii, through its Board of Land 
and Natural Resources.  Therefore simultaneous with this request, the ADC has requested 
that the Land Board also approve the KAA’s proposed action.  The ADC is tasked with 
assisting, promoting and developing agriculture within the State.  Ownership of these 
lands by the ADC ensures the use of these lands in agriculture, in perpetuity.  However, 
the ADC can do more to help agriculture, starting with taking advantage of tax incentive 
programs such as the IAL designation incentive.  ADC is also fortunate to have the KAA 
willing to voluntarily see IAL designation on its own.  The recommendation:  that the 

224

lyle.t.roe
Highlight



Approved at  
February 28, 2018 meeting 

 

6 
 

Board authorize the KAA to pursue a declaratory order to designate a portion of ADC’s 
Kekaha lands as IAL in accordance with Chapter 205, HRS; if appropriate, certify or 
otherwise consent, as the landowner or land manager, to KAA’s forthcoming petition as 
the landowner; and authorize the ADC staff to assist and cooperate with the KAA as 
necessary to secure the designation of the Mana plain lands as important agricultural 
lands.   
 
Mr. Schenk moved to approve the recommendations; Mr. Haraguchi seconded the 
motion.   
 
Mr. Kitagawa asked if the County agreed to participate on County designation.  Mr. 
Uyehara replied that the County said that because there is enough private lands that were 
set aside they were not looking at any kind of mandatory designation.  KAA will fund the 
petition.  The background:  Hartung owns about 150 acres on Oahu and have looked at   
the process for IAL designation and is having a meeting with Office of Planning this 
afternoon because they are moving forward for their own petition and in learning about 
the process and the process involved it became feasible and beneficial that KAA do the 
same.  It seems that it would be very cost effective and the refundable tax credit that is 
renewed this year which has broad base support from the legislature so that credit is up to 
a million dollars per legal entity which qualifying agricultural cost so that would not only 
include KAA but all individual members of the KAA and also non-member tenants on 
the ag lands.  When you look at the overall economic benefit of the potential IAL 
designation, it outweighs the cost of petition.  The cost will be in the range of $100,000 
which the breakdown is for $40,000-$60,000 for legal fees to assemble the petition and 
present it before the LUC and $40--$60,000 in fees to surveying and describing the lands.  
They are trying to designate as much as they can reasonable to justify to the LUC.   
 
Ms. Klutke stated that the KAA agreement is to accept IAL.  Would it be everyone in 
KAA including the small farmers who are on a RP.  Mr. Uyehara replied because the 
designation pertains to lands itself, it doesn’t matter who requests the petition at the end, 
all of the farmers who are farming IAL on ADC lands can request the tax credit.  The 
tenants who reside on DLNR or DOA property would not benefit unless a portion of their 
operations are on ADC lands.  Ms. Kaichi mentioned that DOA was asked if they would 
like to participate at this time but DOA said that this was not a good time for them.   
 
Mr. Haraguchi asked if they foresee any public objections.  Mr. Uyehara replied that he 
cannot foresee any but he does not know.  A typical push back for IAL is are you 
strategically trying to set aside land for development by doing this.   
 
Ms. Klutke asked how long will this process take.  Mr. Uyehara replied for example 
Hartung started in December and the month of May will be on LUC’s agenda.  But they 
still need to wait for DLNR’s approval.  Also need to verify that the tax credit is renewed 
this session which they would know in a couple of months and once they know that they 
will move forward.   
 
Motion carried unanimously. 

225

lyle.t.roe
Highlight



Approved at  
February 28, 2018 meeting 

 

7 
 

 
 
J.    Findings of the investigative committee 
 
This item deferred until the next meeting. 
 
K. Executive Director’s Reports and Updates. 
 

1. Legislature 
2. Galbraith 
 

Mr. Nakatani reported on the ADC legislative bills and CIP requests for 2018.   
 
He reported on the Galbraith lands for small farmers and also a list of the farmers with 
their acres and their status of where they were as far as all their pending items needed 
before acquiring their parcels.   
 
On the agenda for the next meeting will be more discussion on issues regarding the 
legislature. 
 
Mr. Haraguchi asked if there was anything that the Board can help ADC’s staff with 
legislative matters or Galbraith land issues.  He felt that if working with these small 
farmers to comply is not working then we should move to get the farms which are 
probably the big farms onto the parcels.  Mr. Schenk felt that ADC’s mission is to get the 
small farmers on the land and in compliant and to build this industry again.   
 
Mr. Kitagawa suggested that we spend some time at the next meeting discussing issues 
pertaining to the small farmers.  Mr. Nakatani stated that one of issues whereby the 
farmers are not able to get on the lands is getting a conservation plan.  The conservation 
program is not adopted to the movement of agriculture.  We are trying to build a system 
that addresses good agricultural practices, food safety which we did not anticipate being 
so difficult.  The conservation program needs to be looked at because the planner is the 
one who will work on their plan.  This could be a discussion the board can have.   
 
L. Adjourn 
 
Ms. Albano moved to adjourn; Ms. Klutke seconded the motion; motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 11:05 am. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      Cindy Doi 
      secretary 

226



Request for reconsideration of the January 31, 2018 Board authorization for the Kekaha Agriculture 
Association (KAA) to pursue a declaratory order to designate a portion of the Agribusiness Development 
Corporation’s (ADC) Kekaha lands as Important Agricultural Lands in accordance with Chapter 205, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes (HRS), and to certify ADC’s authorization as the landowner of lands set aside for control and 
management of ADC via Executive Order No. 4007, rather than the Department of Land and Natural 
Resources 
 
March 16, 2022 
Page 9 of 9 
 
 

EXHIBIT D 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Land Use Commission Briefs Requested at the December 23, 2021 Hearings on Docket 
No. DR21-75 

 
[see following pages] 

 
 

 

227



228



229



ITem 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JOSH GREEN 
Lt. Governor 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JAMES J. NAKATANI 

Executive Director 

STATE OF HAWAII 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 

Phone:  (808) 586-0186   Fax:  (808) 586-0189 

 
JAMES J. NAKATANI 

Executive Director 

Item F 

ADC Executive Director’s Update 
 

March 16, 2022 
 
1.  Legislative Update 
 

2022 Legislative Session Bill Tracking 
 

The ADC is tracking several bills related to agriculture, composting reimbursement, pesticide  
waste disposal, food hubs, and Food Safety Moderniztion Act (FSMA).  The following  
Legislative bills related to ADC: 
 

• SB 2480 – Relating to the Wahiawa Irrigation System 
  This measure authorizes the issuance of bonds to the Department of Land and Natural 
  Resources and ADC to purchase the Wahiwa Irrigation System, which includes Lake 
  Wilson. 
 

• SB 3096 – Making an emergency appropriation to the Department of Education for 
an agriculture innovation center 

  This measure Provides an emergency appropriation for the Department of Education to 
 build an agriculture innovation center in Kekaha. 

 
• SB2473 – Relating to Economic Development  

  This measure transfers the ADC from the Hawaii Department of Agriculture to the 
 Department of Business, Economic Development, and Tourism. 

 
• HB 2418 – Relating to Agriculture 

This measure amends the focus, scope, and management of the ADC. Appropriates 
funds to ADC for a consultant for planning, and accountant, and for security on ADC 
property. 
 

 
2. Galbraith Agricultural Lands 
 
Gas prices are now the most expensive in United States history and it continues to rise due to  
high demand and inflation. The ADC will need to adjust its water rates accordingly and will be  
making a request to the ADC Board of Director to increase the water user fee.  The following  
are the diesel fuel rates pursuant to the State’s bulk diesel fuel contract since August 2020: 
 
August 18, 2020 $1.70 per gallon 
May 29, 2021  $2.44 per gallon 
March 5, 2022  $3.75 per gallon 
 
 

230


	2022-03-16 ADC Agenda FINAL.pdf
	ADC Minutes 01-26-2022 Draft.pdf
	2022-03-16 ADC Board Packet.pdf
	D-1 Sunrise Capital Greenhouses
	D-2 K & L Produce  Short-term Renewal
	D-3 KAA Open Floodable Space
	D-4 IAL Authorization Reconsideration
	F Executive Director's Report


		2022-03-10T10:03:16-0800
	Agreement certified by Adobe Sign




